
Meeting of:  Rochdale Township Committee
Date: Wednesday 13th June 2018
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside - Number One 
Riverside

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - UPDATE 

To consider an update from Greater Manchester Police. 

6.  OPEN FORUM (6.15-6.45PM) 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township.

7.  EASY HUBS AND COMMUNITY CONNECTOR SERVICE 

Presentation by the Adult Care Service 

Public Document Pack



8.  MINUTES - ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 4 - 6

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale Township 
Committee held on 7th February 2018. 

9.  MINUTES - ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES 
DELEGATED SUB-COMMITTEE 

7 - 12

To note the minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale Township Action 
and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee held on 13th March 2018. 

10.  NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING - APPLICATION FOR THORNHAM 
ST. JOHN'S NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA & FORUM 

13 - 35

To consider an application for a Neighbourhood Area and Forum. 

11.  REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 36 - 38

To review the polling districts and places within the Township. 

12.  LAND AT TURNERS PLACE, ROCHDALE 39 - 41

To consider matters relating to land at Turners Place, Rochdale. 

13.  DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS SITES IN ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP AREA 42 - 47

To consider the release of land for disposal in the Township. 

14.  ROCHDALE ADDITIONAL HIGHWAY INVESTMENT PROPOSED 
PROGRAMME 

48 - 49

To consider the proposed programme for additional highway 
investment. 

15.  ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2018/2019 

50 - 56

To consider the Township delegation arrangements and appointments 
for 2018/2019. 

16.  ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 57 - 100

To consider Township Funds for 2018/2019. 

17.  ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP IN BLOOM 101 - 103

To consider an update on Rochdale Township in Bloom. 



Rochdale Township Committee Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Councillor Shakil Ahmed Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Cecile Biant
Councillor Allen Brett Councillor Lynne Brosnan
Councillor Wendy Cocks Councillor Richard Farnell
Councillor James Gartside Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Michael Holly Councillor Jean Hornby
Councillor Jane Howard Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Kathleen Nickson Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Faisal Rana Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Billy Sheerin Councillor Angela Smith
Councillor Patricia Sullivan Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Peter Winkler Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman

For more information about this meeting, please contact:-

Alison James – Governance and Committee Services
E-Mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk
Telephone: 01706 924711

mailto:alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk


ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 7th February 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor O’Neill (in the Chair); Councillors Ali Ahmed, Iftikhar 
Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Sultan Ali, Cecile Biant, Surinder Biant, 
Brett, Brosnan, Cocks, Duckworth, Farnell, Gartside, Heakin, Holly, Hornby, 
Howard, Meredith, Nickson, Rashid, Sheerin, Wazir, Winkler, Zaheer and 
Zaman.

OFFICERS: V. White, A. Collins (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and 
P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: One member of the public.

APOLOGIES
49 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Sullivan.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
50 There were no declarations of interests.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
51 There were no urgent items of business for the Committee to consider.

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
52 There were no private or confidential items for the Committee to 
consider.

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - UPDATE
53 The Chair advised that there were no representatives from Greater 
Manchester Police in attendance at the meeting. However Members of the 
Committee had a number of issues that they wished to bring to the attention of 
the Police:
a. The Police’s continued presence at Rochdale Township meetings be 
requested to discuss with members strategic policing issues that affect the 
Township as a whole. The Leader of the Council advised that he was due to 
meet Greater Manchester Police’s regional commander, Chief Superintendent 
Evans, within a few days of this Township Committee meeting, and he 
undertook to raise the Township’s concerns at the Police’s recent attendance 
record with him at that meeting.  
b. Members of the Township Committee expressed their concern at the 
high levels of car crime across the Township and were further concerned that 
the Police did not appear to be treating this with the seriousness they felt it 
warranted, unless the act of criminality resulted in an injury.

Decision:
(1) Representatives of Greater Manchester Police continue to be 

requested to attend future meetings of Rochdale Township Committee;

Page 4

Agenda Item 8



(2) Greater Manchester Police be advised of the Township 
Committee’s concerns at the high levels of vehicle related crime and the 
Police’s perceived response to these crimes. 

OPEN FORUM
54 There were no issues raised in the Committee’s Open Forum session. 

MINUTES
55 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township Committee, held 6th 
December 2017, be approved as a correct record.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE
56 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Sub-Committee held, 11th January 2018, be noted.

HIGHWAYS INDICATIVE TWO YEAR WORK PROGRAMME - ROCHDALE 
TOWNSHIP
57 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods, the purpose of which was to afford Members the opportunity 
to consider the 2018 - 2020 highways and structures capital programme, 
insofar as it affected Rochdale Township.

The Committee expressed their concerns at the way in which the highways 
maintenance contract across the Borough was being managed by Balfour 
Beatty, the contractor undertaking highways maintenance work on behalf of 
the Council. It was suggested that the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee be requested to establish a 
scrutiny study group to examine this matter in more detail and, if necessary, 
make appropriate recommendations to the Cabinet thereon.

Alternatives considered:
The alternative to carrying out this programme would to maintain the assets 
(as detailed in the submitted report) on a ‘worst first’ basis. This approach was 
considered to be more expensive than carrying out preventative maintenance 
and was deemed, by the Department for Transport, as being inefficient and as 
such could lead to Rochdale Borough Council getting a reduction in funding 
from the Department for Transport. 

Decision:
1. The Committee approves the 2018 - 2020 Highways and Structures 

Capital Programme insofar as it affects the area covered by Rochdale 
Township.

2. Where events that arise which are external to the Council and require a 
rapid response, or agreement in principle, the Township Committee 
authorises the Council’s Head of Highways to vary the programme, 
insofar as it affects the area covered by the Rochdale Township, in 

Page 5



consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Housing and 
the Chair of Rochdale Township Committee.

3. The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be requested to establish a scrutiny study group to 
examine the operation of the Highways Maintenance Contract for the 
Rochdale Borough, especially in relation to the performance of Balfour 
Beatty Limited and, if necessary, make appropriate recommendations 
to the Cabinet thereon.

Reason for the decisions:
The programme which was detailed in the submitted report was put together 
based on network condition data, engineer site visits and guidance issued by 
the Department for Transport. The programme aimed to maximise the 
improvement to the network by carrying out the most efficient and cost 
effective engineering works to the asset. The programme had been produced 
to ensure maximum efficiency and cost benefit which should satisfy the 
relevant element of the Department for Transport’s self-assessment 
questionnaire which would enable Rochdale Borough Council to receive the 
maximum budget allocation available from the Department for Transport.

Eligible for Call-in: No.

Page 6



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 13th March 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Cecile Biant (in the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, 
Heakin, Nickson, O’Neill (substituting for Councillor Shakil Ahmed), Sheerin, 
Sullivan, Winkler and Zaheer (substituting for Councillor Zaman).

OFFICERS: V. White, N. McKendry (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. 
Thompson (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Ali Ahmed, Councillor Gartside and 30 
members of the public.  

APOLOGIES
53 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Shakil Ahmed and 
Zaman.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
54 Decision:
That the following declarations of interest be noted:-

Councillor Winkler declared a personal and prejudicial interest in minute 63 below 
(Objections to Traffic Regulation Order – Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road, 
Rochdale) and he withdrew from the meeting during consideration of this item.

Councillors O’Neill and Sheerin both declared a personal interest in minute 58 
(Appointment of Trustees to the Norman Barnes Fund).

Councillor Cecile Biant declared a personal interest in the funding application 
TC/20/17 (Rooley Moor Road Waiting Restrictions) at minute 64 and she refrained 
from voting on this application.

Councillor Sullivan declared a personal interest in the funding application RP/12/17 
(Bury Road/Sandy Lane Signal Junction Study) at minute 64.

Councillor O’Neill declared a personal interest in funding application TC/21/17 (Dell 
Road Improvements) at minute 64.   

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
55 There were no urgent items of business for the Sub-Committee to consider.

MINUTES
56 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee held 11th January 2018, be signed by the Chair and 
approved as a correct record. 

APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEES TO THE NORMAN BARNES FUND

Page 7

Agenda Item 9



57 The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce) which advise that the term of Office of two Trustees of 
the Norman Barnes Fund had expired, namely Councillor Kathleen Nickson and Mrs 
Jane Gartside. In accordance with the Trust Deed for the charity, appointments were 
to be made by this Sub-Committee on behalf of the Council.

Alternatives considered:
None as the Trust deed specified no other means of appointing nominative Trustees.

Decision:
That Councillor Kathleen Nickson and Ms Jane Gartside be both reappointed to the 
Norman Barnes Fund as nominative Trustees for a period of four years each.

Reason for the decision:
The term of office of the two Trustees, of the Norman Barnes Fund, named above, 
had expired and in accordance with the Trust Deed, appointments were delegated to 
either the Rochdale Township Committee or the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee to make. There was a meeting of the Norman 
Barnes Fund due to take place on 20th March 2018, so it was essential that the 
appointments were made at this meeting to enable the two nominative Trustees to 
take part in this next meeting.

NORDEN AREA FORUM
58 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of Norden Area Forum held 12th December 2017, be 
noted.

HEALEY AREA FORUM
59 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of Healey Area Forum held 14th December 2017, be 
noted.

CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM
60 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of Central Rochdale Area Forum held 8th January 
2018 be noted.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP CLEAN AND GREEN PRIORITY GROUP
61 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township Clean and Green Priority 
Group held 19th February 2018 be noted.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITIES AND ENGAGEMENT PRIORITY GROUP
62 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township Communities and 
Engagement Priority Group held 21st February 2018 be noted.

OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC ORDER - BLACKPITS ROAD & EDENFIELD ROAD, 
ROCHDALE
63 The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
advising of five objections received to the proposed Traffic Regulation Order: 
Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic contraventions) (Various Streets) 
(Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.126) Order, which proposed to 
introduce parking restrictions on parts of Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road (A680).

Page 8



The Sub-Committee’s report explained the background to the proposals and 
commented upon the points made by the objectors to assist the Sub-Committee’s 
members in coming to a decision about the proposed Order’s introduction.

In considering the proposed Traffic Regulation Order the Chair of the Sub-Committee 
permitted Mr. N. Morrell and Mr. M. Newman to address the meeting on behalf the 
objectors to the proposals.

In considering the proposed Traffic Regulation Order the Chair of the Sub-Committee 
permitted Mr. and Mrs. Warwick to address the meeting on behalf the supporters of 
the proposals.

The Sub-Committee also received representations from Norden Ward member, 
Councillor James Gartside, who spoke to object to the proposed Traffic Regulation 
Order. 

Alternatives considered:
The Council’s Highways Officers did not feel that a reduction in the scale of the 
proposals was appropriate on either Blackpits Road or Edenfield Road. 
Consideration was given to reducing the scale of the proposals to just one side of 
Edenfield Road on the bend situated between Greenbooth Road and Rose Avenue. 
It was felt that there was insufficient road width available for parking and any 
relaxation in the proposals would reduce forward visibility and remove one of the key 
parts of the advertised proposals.

Decision:
That consideration of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order: Borough of Rochdale 
((Civil Enforcement of Traffic contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) 
Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.126) Order, which proposed to introduce parking 
restrictions on parts of Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road (A680) be referred to the 
Cabinet for determination.

Reason for the decision:
The Sub-Committee has delegated authority to approve and implement the proposed 
Traffic Regulation Order: Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) 
(No.126) Order as advertised. If the Sub-Committee is unable to approve the 
proposed Order as advertised, then the Council’s Scheme of Delegation requires that 
the proposal must be referred to the Cabinet for determination.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2017/18
64 The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
updating on the revenue and capital expenditure commitments and balances of 
Rochdale Township Fund 2017/2018, to enable the Sub-Committee to allocate funds 
to proposed projects.

The Sub-Committee were asked to note the expenditure, commitments and balances 
of Rochdale Township Funds 2017/18 as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the 
submitted report, the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed at 
Appendix 3 to the submitted report and to consider and approve, defer or refuse the 
allocation of funds to proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted 
report. Members of the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-
Committee were requested to note that the projects had been identified for funding 
from Rochdale Township Funds 2017/18. Members were asked to decide whether to 

Page 9



approve, reject or defer the allocation of revenue and capital funds to the proposed 
projects listed in Appendix 4.

In considering the funding applications the Sub-Committee received oral 
representations from some of the applicant’s and/or their representatives, who were 
in attendance at the meeting.

Alternatives considered - in considering the report, Members were asked to
Decide whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects/schemes as 
appropriate.

Decision:
1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances of the Rochdale Township 
Funds 2017/18, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the submitted report be noted;
2. That the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3 of 
the submitted report be noted;
3. That the Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the
Chair, Vice Chair and opposition spokesperson of the Sub-Committee, be given 
delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects;
4. That applications for Township Funds, (as outlined in Appendix 4 of the submitted 
report); and be dealt with as follows:-

Ref Project name Decision
RP/10/17 AMPSO Helping Hand 

Project (Healthy Lifestyle 
for Rochdale’s Asian 
Community)

£2,300 approved from 
revenue funds

RP/11/17 Castlemere Community 
Centre Training Suite 
refurbishment 

£4,797.99 approved from 
revenue funds

RP/12/17 Bury Road/Sandy Lane 
Signal Junction Study

£5,000 approved from 
revenue funds

RP/13/17 High Street and Union 
Street Car Park Shrub Bed 
Removal

£3,157 approved from 
revenue funds

RP/15/17 Walking Fit and 
Connected (WFC) – 
Kramblers Rochdale

£5,442 approved from 
revenue funds

TC/11/17 Sandbrook Way Waiting 
Restrictions

£2,500 approved from 
capital funds

TC/12/17 Hill Street/March Street 
Area Waiting Restrictions

£7,000 approved from 
capital funds

TC/13/17 Shawclough Road Safety 
Scheme

£7,500 approved from 
capital funds

TC/14/17 Disabled Access Toilet 
(RWWA)

£5,298 approved from 
capital funds

TC/16/17 South Street Drainage 
Improvements

£5,864 approved from 
capital funds

TC/17/17 Rhodes Crescent 
Resurfacing

The funding application in 
respect of this proposal be 
refused as it would not 
constitute an appropriate 
use of the Township’s 
funds but, given the poor 

Page 10



start e of this road, the 
scheme be recommended 
for inclusion in the 
Council’s new Highways 
Improvement Programme 
that will be effective in 
2018/19  

TC/18/17 Edenfield Road junction 
with Elmsfield Avenue 
(Norden Arms) and 
Edenfield Road junction 
with Moorfield Avenue 
Waiting Restrictions

£4,000 approved from 
capital funds

TC/19/17 Yorkshire Street Loading 
Restrictions 

£9,000 approved from 
capital funds

TC/20/17 Rooley Moor Road 
Waiting Restrictions

£4,500 approved from 
capital funds

TC/21/17 Dell Road Improvements £28,000 approved from 
capital funds

N.B. (1) Officers present 
advised the Sub-
Committee that Rochdale 
Township Fund's terms 
and conditions, under 
items that may not be 
funded, included repairing 
un-adopted roads. In this 
regard Dell Road was an 
un-adopted highway and 
there was a significant risk 
that its future maintenance 
would become the 
responsibility of Rochdale 
Borough Council if this 
scheme is implemented. 
Also it was noted that if 
the road was to 
significantly further 
degraded this may change 
the cost of the works. It 
was not the Council’s 
responsibility to repair and 
maintain this or any other 
un-adopted road, the 
Council only being liable 
for maintaining adopted 
Highways.

 The Sub-Committee was 
further advised that if this 
funding application was 
approved it could establish 
a precedent for claims for 

Page 11



maintenance by the 
Council of other un-
adopted roads in the 
Borough which are in a 
similarly poor condition 
and of which there were 
many.
(2) Councillors Cecile 
Biant, Sullivan and Winkler 
requested that their votes 
to refuse this application 
for funding be noted and 
recorded 

TC/22/17 Dropped Kerb at Springhill 
Hospice Tea Room

£500 approved from 
capital funds

TC/23/17 Denehurst Play Area £8,977 approved from 
capital funds

TC/24/17 Kingsway Waiting 
Restrictions

£3,500 approved from 
capital funds

TC/25/17 Falinge Park Building 
Doors

£5,220 approved from 
capital funds

Reason for decision:
The management of the Rochdale Township Fund is a function that is delegated to 
the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub Committee to 
determine. Rochdale Township Funds are allocated to projects and schemes that 
aim to benefit the Township’s community and environment, and which should realise 
the Township priorities. The Sub-Committee undertakes monitoring and a review of 
the use of the Rochdale Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective 
use of those Funds.

Eligible for Call-in: Yes.

Page 12



1

Report to Rochdale Township Committee and 
Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 7th June 2018
13 June 2018

Portfolio
Councillor Daalat Ali
Portfolio Holder for Planning, 
Development & Housing

Report Author Sohida Banu

Public/Private Document Public

Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Planning – Application for Area and Forum

Executive Summary

1.1 The Localism Act 2011 introduced new planning provisions enabling 
designated Neighbourhood Forums to prepare planning policies for a 
designated Neighbourhood Area, for consideration by the relevant local 
authority and by an independent examiner.

The Council has received two applications at this very early stage of 
neighbourhood planning– one to designate a Neighbourhood Area in 
Thornham St. John’s, Castleton and another to establish a Thornham St. 
John’s Neighbourhood Forum.  This report makes recommendations regarding 
the determination of both these applications, specifically within the context for 
assessing the suitability of the proposed Neighbourhood Area and Forum.

The Council will then publicise and undertake formal consultation on both the 
applications and consider any representations that might argue for different 
boundaries from those proposed or broader representation in terms of 
membership.  

Recommendations

2.1 That the Township Committee approves the following as the basis for public 
consultation:
 The proposed Thornham St. John’s area boundary, as described in the 

plan.
 The Thornham St. John’s Forum neighbourhood application.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 To comply with the requirements of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended), specifically regulations 5 and 8. The 
application of a neighbourhood Area and Forum will enable the community to  
begin the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan for their area. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 10



2

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

The Localism Act 2011 introduced a new right for communities in England to 
undertake Neighbourhood Planning. The Act places duties on local planning 
authorities to support the preparation of Neighbourhood Plans.

Neighbourhood Plans are statutory planning documents which are prepared 
by a Parish Council, a community group or an organisation or body known as 
a “Neighbourhood Forum”. To be designated a neighbourhood forum, the 
organisation or body should be inclusive and must be made up of a minimum 
of 21 people who live or work in the area or are elected local authority 
councillors in the area.

In order for a community group to produce a Neighbourhood Plan, they must 
submit an application to the Council defining their boundary and details of who 
is involved within the Forum. It is for the community to define the area to be 
covered by their Neighbourhood Plan and the people who are to be involved in 
the Forum, although the Council has a role in ensuring that the Forum is 
engaging with the local community and local stakeholders.

Appendix 1 provides a summary of the stages involved in the preparation of a 
Neighbourhood Plan. 

A neighbourhood development plan may contain a range of policies or 
proposals for land use development that will be used as part of determining 
decisions on planning applications. It can also grant planning permission 
through neighbourhood development orders for a particular, defined type of 
development in an area or a specific site. 

The new process requires decisions to be made by the council at various 
stages in order to designate an area and forum for the preparation of a 
neighbourhood development plan. 

Generally, a neighbourhood area application is submitted first and designated 
by the Council before a neighbourhood forum application is considered.  This 
is to enable the Council to make a judgement on how well the membership of 
the proposed neighbourhood forum reflects the designated neighbourhood 
area.  However, it is recommended that stages 1 and 2 (See Appendix 1) are 
undertaken at the same time in order to save time and resources. 

It is not anticipated that taking this approach would compromise or impact on 
the preparation of the neighbourhood planning process or the statutory 
publication period of six weeks.

However, there is the risk that if the neighbourhood area boundary is changed 
by the Council before it is designated, then the neighbourhood forum 
membership may no longer be appropriate.  Should this be the case then only 
the forum application will need to be resubmitted and consulted on, again.  

Application for designation of a neighbourhood area

The Council is responsible for receiving and determining applications for the 
designation of a neighbourhood area (i.e. an area to which a neighbourhood 

Page 14



4

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

plan relates). Part 2, Section 5 of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) 
Regulations 2012 states that application for designation of a neighbourhood 
area must include:

a) a map (see map in Appendix 2) which identifies the Area boundary to which 
the area application relates to;
b) a statement (Appendix 2) explaining why the Area is considered appropriate 
to be designated as a neighbourhood area; and
c) a statement (Appendix 2) that the organisation or body making the area 
application is the relevant body for the purpose of section 61G of the 1990 Act.

This initial stage seeks to ascertain whether the requisite information is 
present and appropriate within the application.  

In Officers view it is considered that both the Neighbourhood Area 
application meets the minimum legal requirements. In addition, there are 
no other existing or proposed neighbourhood areas for this site.

Application for designation of a neighbourhood forum

The Council is responsible for receiving and determining applications for the 
designation of a neighbourhood forum.  Section 61F (5) of the Act states that 
local planning authorities may designate an organisation or body as a 
neighbourhood forum if the following conditions are met:

• It is established for the express purpose of promoting or improving   the 
social, economic and environmental well-being of an area that consists of 
or includes the neighbourhood area concerned (See Appendix 3).

• Its membership is open to-
• (i). Individuals who live in the neighbourhood area concerned,
• (ii). Individuals who work there, and
• (iii). Individuals who are elected members of a county council, district 

council or London borough council any of whose area falls within the 
neighbourhood area concerned (See Appendix 3).

• Its membership includes a minimum of 21 individuals, each of whom falls 
into at least one of the categories in (i) to (iii) above (See Appendix 3).

• It has a written constitution (See Appendix 3).

In Officers view it is considered that both the Neighbourhood Forum 
application meets the minimum legal requirements. 

Next Steps

If approved for consultation, the neighbourhood area and forum application 
must then be publicised for consultation for a period of not less than six weeks 
seeking representations from the area of interest.  The council must publicise 
on the website and in any other ways considered relevant a copy of the area 
application, details of how to make representations and the date by which 
those representations must be received.  Township Members are invited to 
comment on whether any further publicity should be sought in this specific 
case.  

If, following this public consultation, it is deemed appropriate to designate the 

Page 15



5

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area and Forum for Thornham St. 
John’s Neighbourhood Development Plan, a further report will be produced for 
Township Committee requesting members to approve the designation of the 
Area and the Forum so that the process of preparing a neighbourhood 
development plan by the local community can commence.  

What is the council’s role in neighbourhood planning?

Neighbourhood development plans are prepared by the community but there 
are a number of things the Council has a duty to do. It must:
• consult on and make a decision on the boundary of the area to be 

designated the neighbourhood area for the purposes of the neighbourhood 
development plan;

• consult on and determine applications for designation of a neighbourhood 
forum;

• organise the check by an independent examiner into a neighbourhood 
development plan;

• organise the referendum into the plan; and
• if supported, resolve to adopt the neighbourhood development Plan and to 

bring it into force on a particular date.

The Council also has a duty to provide technical advice and support to those 
producing a Neighbourhood Development Plan.

Alternatives considered

Alternatives to producing a neighbourhood plan were discussed with the 
community group and included:
• Using other planning tools such as seeking to influence an emerging local 

plan; commenting on planning applications; get involved in pre-application 
discussions; influencing design and development briefs.

• Producing a parish plan or community plan (though these do not have any 
status as statutory planning policy).

• Developing a community project and raise funds for its delivery. 

However, none of the above alternatives were considered appropriate for the 
requirements of the group.  In addition, where a community group can meet 
the basic conditions for preparing a neighbourhood plan, the Council has a 
duty to consider and support the preparation of that plan.  

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1. There are no specific financial implications arising from the recommendations 
within this report or for the Council’s involvement in the process at this stage.  
Going forward, the costs to the Council will depend on the nature and scale of 
help and support provided and the ability of community groups to contribute 
financially to the process or obtain further funding to support the plan 
preparation.  The duty to support does not require the Council to give financial 
assistance to a designated neighbourhood forum unless it chooses to do so.  
Currently, the Government has suggested funds will be made available to 
authorities to cover the costs of the independent check and referendum but no 
details are yet available. It is not possible to provide an authoritative estimate 
of the total costs involved in preparing a plan.  However, if the Council decides 

Page 16



6

to provide financial assistance then a separate Cabinet report will be provided 
to seek approval for this assistance.

Risk and Policy Implications

All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report involve risk 
considerations as set out below:
 Local communities will be required to show that they are able to 

accommodate requirements for growth and development in their areas in 
accordance with the Local Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. If they simply seek to prevent development, current 
Guidance indicates the Plan will not succeed at an independent 
examination.

 Resourcing neighbourhood planning forums and neighbourhood planning 
areas is likely to be an issue faced by communities and authorities.  It is 
noted and would be expected that much of the work and resource is 
expected to be undertaken by the designated neighbourhood forum.

 Based on national feedback elsewhere, the preparation of neighbourhood 
development plans appears to be a lengthy and resource intensive 
process. Further reports setting out any resource or risk implications 
would need to be presented to Township for consideration.

6.1

Consultation

7.1 If the applications for Neighbourhood Area and Forum are approved, the 
Council intends to publicise and consult on the two applications between 
18th June and 30th July 2018.
During this time the application and supporting information will be published 
on the Council’s website, and paper copies of the documents will be 
available in Rochdale Library, Castleton and Middleton Library.  Stakeholders 
on the Council’s planning policy database will be notified by letter or email. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 Written Constitution Members Lounge

For Further Information Contact: Sohida Banu

Page 17



7

Appendix 1 

Appendix 1 Stages of preparing a Neighbourhood Plan
Stage 1 An application for a neighbourhood area is made to the Council for 

determination.  The Council must ensure that designated 
neighbourhood areas do not overlap, as no more than one 
neighbourhood development plan may be made for a particular 
designated neighbourhood area.

Stage 2 Following the designation of a neighbourhood area, an additional 
application is made by an appropriately constituted organisation to 
be designated as the neighbourhood forum. There are specific 
criteria that a designated neighbourhood forum must have a 
minimum membership requirement of 21 people and that they are 
appropriately representative of stakeholders living or working within 
the plan area.

Stage 3 Once the neighbourhood area is designated, the neighbourhood 
forum prepares the draft neighbourhood development plan or 
order. This stage includes consultation with residents and 
businesses within the plan area, and areas that may be affected by 
the plan.

Stage 4 The Council checks conformity with the basic procedural 
requirements, such as conformity with planning policy, the Local 
Plan, the National Planning Policy Framework, and legislation, as 
appropriate.

Stage 5 If the neighbourhood development plan is considered to be in 
conformity with policy and legislation, the Council appoints an 
independent examiner to carry out an examination on the plan, 
including the possibility for a hearing of oral evidence. This check 
further ensures the plan conforms to policy, legislation and that it is 
not in breach of EU legislation.

Stage 6 Subject to the examiner’s recommendations, the Council will 
decide the appropriate course of action. If the examination finds 
that the neighbourhood development plan satisfies the 
requirements, the Council must plan, publicise and hold a 
referendum to ascertain whether there is support for the plan. If 
more than 50% of those voting in the referendum vote ‘yes’, then 
the Council will bring the plan into force.  If the plan is not fit to 
proceed to referendum, or is rejected at a referendum, the process 
must start again.

Page 18



11

Appendix 2

ApplicationApplication  forfor  thethe  DesignationDesignation  ofof  aa  NeighbourhoodNeighbourhood  AreaArea

Neighbourhood Planning (General) 
Regulations 2012
Application for the Designation of a 
Neighbourhood Area (Regulation 5)

This form has been prepared by Rochdale Council to help simplify the application 
process for designation of a neighbourhood area. You do not have to use the form.  
Please note that the information provided on this application form and its supporting 
documents will be made public. 
If you require any further clarification, or would like to discuss the boundaries of 
your proposed Neighbourhood Area with the Council before you submit your 
application, please contact the Strategic Planning via email at 
LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk
1. Applicant Details
Contact name: Gordon Tilstone
Organisation name: Thornham St John's Neighbourhood Forum
Address: 47 Thornham Lane, Middleton M24 2RE
Email Address: greenbelt@slattocks.com
Telephone Number: 

2. Name of Proposed Neighbourhood Area
Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area

Page 19



8

3. Neighbourhood Area Details - Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area Map

Page 20



9

Why this area is appropriate
The Thornham St John’s Neighbourhood Forum [TSJNF] has been established to 
promote and improve the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of the TSJ 
Neighbourhood Plan (TSJNP) Area [see map attached]. 
The initiating group gained information about neighbourhood planning locally through the 
Rooley Moor Area Forum and more widely via Woodford Neighbourhood Forum in 
Stockport. Alongside this were conversations with the planning officers of Rochdale MBC. 
Information was also acquired from the Government’s website (Locality), Planning Aid 
and the Campaign for the Protection of Rural England [CPRE]. From this information 
base the proposed neighbourhood area was drawn up. 
We believe the creation of a Neighbourhood Area and Forum will further help community 
cohesion for those who live, work, pursue recreational activities and carry out business in 
the area. 
We recognise that our Neighbourhood Forum and Area needs to maintain itself as a 
thriving community through the provision of appropriately scaled employment premises 
and housing, particularly enough affordable housing. We are also keen to promote both 
public and non-motor transport.  
The NPA boundary closely follows the Thornham St Johns Parish Boundary. Minor 
amendments have been made to this to include properties to the west of Rochdale Road 
opposite Cardinal Langley High School and to exclude those on Trows Lane, beyond the 
now natural border of the M62. The area has been chosen in conjunction with a core 
group of residents and a Ward Councillor as being manageable in terms of preparation of 
a neighbourhood plan. 
Our neighbourhood area includes Chesham Estate, Slattocks village, Stakehill, 
Thornham Fold and properties between Slattocks Roundabout and Stanycliffe Lane.
The vast majority of land within the proposed NPA is Greenbelt. Much of this is used for 
farming, principally gazing for sheep and cattle. There are both beef & dairy cattle which 
include a Holstein herd, noted for its high milk yield. Chicken egg production is also a 
thriving local farm-based business. Many of the farms are owned and operated by local 
families with long associations with the area. Some parts of farmland are given over to 
game bird production and shooting. The lanes and public footpaths are regularly 
frequented by numerous walking groups, horse riders, cyclists, runners and individuals 
for recreation, general exercise and enjoyment. The Rochdale Canal runs the length of 
the Area from Trub to Stanycliffe and is well used by leisure craft, anglers, walkers, 
joggers and cyclists. It also forms a useful corridor/route for local workers’ journeys. 
People are increasingly conscious of their health and well-being and wish to exercise in 
natural places (jogging, walking, cycling, etc). Thus the Area’s green infrastructure (trees, 
hedgerows, river/canal banks, green corridors) plays a crucial role in people’s lives. 
As such we consider our local landscape and heritage assets as essential parts of wider 
area’s appeal. The mixture of rural and urban aspects make it distinct and contribute to 
the agricultural and visitor economy.
The Area contains a range of residential, business (including Stakehill Industrial Estate 
[SIE]), farmland, greenbelt and rail & major road links. 
Of particular note are a Grade II listed church, St John the Evangelist Thornham; 
Thornham Cricket Club; the Richard Bentley Smalley Memorial Hall (Charity no. 228619); 
the Rochdale Canal; and Gerrard Wood (described in GMSF draft October 2016 as a Site 
of Biological Importance [SBI]).
There are three schools within the Plan Area, namely; Cardinal Langley RC High School 

Page 21



10

& Sixth Form; St John’s Thornham CE (VA) Primary School; and St John Fisher RC 
Primary School. 
Businesses outside of the SIE footprint include a number of farms, hotels & a spa/fitness 
centre, residential and nursing care homes, bed & breakfast accommodation, skip hire, 
two garden centres, car sales, three public houses and a fuel station with convenience 
shop. The Area also has a number of licenced mobile kiosks for drinks/sandwich/hot food 
which are well used by local residents & workers, along with passing trade.
Stakehill Industrial Estate - the Forum fully acknowledge Rochdale Council’s aim to focus 
on economic growth as part of its Adopted Core Strategy [Oct 2016] and we recognise 
the Council’s wish to further enhance and promote employment within the Estate’s 
current footprint.
We have, therefore, excluded the SIE footprint from our NPA but reserve the right to 
comment on and/or object to specific planning applications within the SIE footprint, as 
deemed appropriate by Forum members.
We also fully support the Council’s aims in protecting the Greenbelt. We see the 
Greenbelt in our NPA as an important asset for both the local and wider community which 
should be fully protected as per local and national legislation.
The Area’s housing is a variety of social & private rented, owner occupiers and supported 
living accommodation. 

Page 22



11

4. More About You 

Capability of the neighbourhood forum to be a qualifying body
A variety of professionals live in the area including construction & environment 
specialists, clergy, teachers, and medical & legal specialists.
An initial consultation on the principles of a neighbourhood plan has been carried out by 
small group discussions and email. This was followed up with a leaflet delivery to all 
residential and business properties in the proposed Plan Area. The leaflet [attached] 
invited everyone to a local meeting. At this meeting explanations of the process and 
presentations where given. A Q&A session followed. The first formal meeting of the 
Forum was held on 6th January 2018. This meeting formalised the Forum name, propose 
d Plan Area and elected a Management Committee in accordance with the Constitution. 
A list of Forum officers and people who have agreed to be members to date is attached. 
They bring a range of expertise including, finance, marketing, tax, project management, 
information technology, education, medicine, accounting, logistics and sport, alongside 
business owners, walkers, equestrians, anglers and members of the clergy. The majority 
of these forum members live or work in the Area, plus a Ward Councillor and business 
representatives with their businesses dependent on the area. 
As the Plan Area bisects two Parliamentary constituency areas [Rochdale and Heywood 
& Middleton] both Members of Parliament will be invited to join the Forum.
Members have expressed a desire to: 

 Engage with residents, businesses and visitors so that their needs are taken into 
account;  

 Be open to development in the Area whilst protecting its assets for the benefit of 
both local residents and the wider community;

 Look at ways to encourage sympathetic tourism and outdoor activity in the Area;

 Continually look at ways to improve the area for the benefit of all.

Page 23



Register of Members

Initial Lives in area 
Postcode

Business in area Works in area Cllr or MP

BA Y    
SB Y    
CB Y    
GB Y    
RB Y    
PB Y    
JB Y    
LB Y    
BB Y    
CB Y    
IB Y    
LB Y    
SB Y    
CB Y    
JB Y    
AB Y    
SB Y    
EC Y    
SC Y    
RC Y    
NC Y    
WC Y    
MC Y    
LC Y    
SC Y    
MC Y    
HC Y    
DD Y    
MD Y    
DD Y    
HD Y    
ED Y    
FD Y    
AD Y Y   
VD Y Y   
RD Y    
ME Y    
AE Y    
PE Y  y  
SF Y    
SF Y    

Page 24



DF Y    
HG Y    
SG Y    
JG Y y   
GG Y    
JH Y    
WH Y    
BH Y    
PH Y    
BH Y    
HJ Y    
JK Y    
JK Y    
RL Y    
SL Y    
PM Y    
RM Y    
VM Y    
SM Y    
JM Y    
KM Y    
JM Y    
MM Y    
KM Y    
FN Y    
KN Y    
PN Y    
GO Y    
TO Y    
SO Y    
KO Y    
LO Y    
MP Y    
EP Y    
RP Y    
JP Y    
AP Y    
DP Y  Y  
JP Y    
MP Y    
AP Y    
SQ Y Y   
RQ Y    
HR Y    
PS Y Y   
KS Y Y   

Page 25



AS Y    
JS Y    
BS Y   Y
ZS Y    
JS Y    
GS Y    
SS Y    
LS Y    
AS Y    
DS Y    
NS Y    
SS Y  Y  
PS Y    
GT Y    
JT Y    
ST Y    
AW Y    
KW Y    
MW Y    
GW Y  Y  
JW Y    
RW Y    
AW Y    
MW Y    
PW Y Y   
JW Y    
DW Y    
JY Y    

5. Declaration:
I hereby apply for the designation of a neighbourhood area as described in this form and 
shown on the accompanying plan.
Signed: Gordon Tilstone
Dated: 03/05/2018
In accordance with Regulation 6 (Publicising an area application), Rochdale Council will 
publicise, and invite comments on the application for a 6 week period. 
Please submit this form, and attached documentation, by email at 
LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk 
Alternatively, please post the form and supporting documents to:
Strategic Planning Service
Number 1 Riverside
Smith Street, 
Rochdale, 
OL16 1XU

Page 26

mailto:LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 3

ApplicationApplication  forfor  thethe  DesignationDesignation  ofof  aa  NeighbourhoodNeighbourhood  ForumForum
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 
2012

Application for the Designation of a 
Neighbourhood Forum (Regulation 8)

This form has been prepared by Rochdale Council to help simplify the application 
process for designation of a neighbourhood forum. You do not have to use the form.  
Please note that the information provided on this application form and its supporting 
documents will be made public. If you require any further clarification, or would 
like to discuss the proposed Neighbourhood Forum with the Council before you 
submit your application, please contact the Strategic Planning Service via email 
at LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 Regulations 8, 9 and 10 
requires details of at least one member of the proposed neighbourhood forum to be 
made public.

1. Applicant Details

Contact name: Gordon Tilstone
Organisation name: Thornham St John's Neighbourhood Forum
Address: 47 Thornham Lane, Middleton M24 2RE
Email Address: greenbelt@slattocks.com
Telephone Number: 

2. Name of Proposed Neighbourhood Forum

Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Forum

3. Name of Proposed Neighbourhood Area – Please give the name of the relevant 
neighbourhood area and attach a map identifying the extent of the area.

Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area

4. Written Constitution (please attach)

☒ Constitution attached (included as Background Document – Available in 
Members Lounge)

Page 27



5. Statement

This section provides the opportunity to set out the purpose, aims and ambitions of the 
neighbourhood forum and to demonstrate how its membership is representative of the 
local community.

In order for the Council to designate a neighbourhood forum to act on behalf of a 
neighbourhood area, it needs to be satisfied that the following conditions contained in 
Section 61F (5) of Schedule 9 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended by the Localism Act) are met:

a) it is established for the express purpose of promoting or improving the social, 
economic and environmental well-being of the neighbourhood area concerned 
(whether or not it is also established for the express purpose of promoting the 
carrying on of trades, professions or other businesses in such an area)

b) membership is open to and includes a minimum of 21 individuals each of 
whom:

- live in the neighbourhood area;
- work in the neighbourhood area;
- carry out business in the neighbourhood area (for example, represent 

the area as a local councillor or as a Member of Parliament).
c) it has a written constitution (as detailed in Section 2)

Please set out the purpose, aims and ambitions of the proposed neighbourhood 
forum here: 

The Thornham St John’s Neighbourhood Forum [TSJNF] has been established to 
promote and improve the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of the TSJ 
Neighbourhood Plan (TSJNP) Area [see map attached]. This will be achieved by 
agreeing a vision for the TSJNP Area, preparing development policies (that conform 
with local and national planning policies) to achieve this vision and by preparing a 
Neighbourhood Plan for the Area (NPA) which embodies these policies and any other 
appropriate purpose agreed by the Forum. 

Our values are to conduct Forum affairs ethically and observe the 'Nolan Principles', 
the seven principles of public life, namely Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, 
Accountability, Openness, Honesty and Leadership; and to pursue equality of 
opportunity in terms of its membership, its conduct and its proposed Plan. 

Membership is open to all individuals who live, work, pursue recreational activities and 
carry out business in the area, ward councillors and individuals who are elected 
members. Prior to this a number of local residents had formed the SOS-Save Our 
Slattocks greenbelt group with a formal constitution, officers and a bank account.

The initiating group gained information about neighbourhood planning locally through 
the Rooley Moor Area Forum and more widely via Woodford Neighbourhood Forum in 
Stockport. Alongside this were conversations with the planning officers of Rochdale 
MBC. Information was also acquired from the Government’s website (Locality), 

Page 28



Planning Aid and the Campaign for the Protection of Rural England [CPRE]. From this 
information base the proposed neighbourhood area was drawn up. 

We believe the creation of a Neighbourhood Area and Forum will further help 
community cohesion for those who live, work, pursue recreational activities and carry 
out business in the area. 

We recognise that our Neighbourhood Forum and Area needs to maintain itself as a 
thriving community through the provision of appropriately scaled employment 
premises and housing, particularly enough affordable housing. We are also keen to 
promote both public and non-motor transport.  

The NPA boundary closely follows the Thornham St Johns Parish Boundary. Minor 
amendments have been made to this to include properties to the west of Rochdale 
Road opposite Cardinal Langley High School and to exclude those on Trows Lane, 
beyond the now natural border of the M62. The area has been chosen in conjunction 
with a core group of residents and a Ward Councillor as being manageable in terms of 
preparation of a neighbourhood plan. 

Our neighbourhood area includes Chesham Estate, Slattocks village, Stakehill, 
Thornham Fold and properties between Slattocks Roundabout and Stanycliffe Lane.

The vast majority of land within the proposed NPA is Greenbelt. Much of this is used 
for farming, principally gazing for sheep and cattle. There are both beef & dairy cattle 
which include a Holstein herd, noted for its high milk yield. Chicken egg production is 
also a thriving local farm-based business. Many of the farms are owned and operated 
by local families with long associations with the area. Some parts of farmland are 
given over to game bird production and shooting. The lanes and public footpaths are 
regularly frequented by numerous walking groups, horse riders, cyclists, runners and 
individuals for recreation, general exercise and enjoyment. The Rochdale Canal runs 
the length of the Area from Trub to Stanycliffe and is well used by leisure craft, 
anglers, walkers, joggers and cyclists. It also forms a useful corridor/route for local 
workers’ journeys. 

People are increasingly conscious of their health and well-being and wish to exercise 
in natural places (jogging, walking, cycling, etc). Thus the Area’s green infrastructure 
(trees, hedgerows, river/canal banks, green corridors) plays a crucial role in people’s 
lives. 

As such we consider our local landscape and heritage assets as essential parts of 
wider area’s appeal. The mixture of rural and urban aspects make it distinct and 
contribute to the agricultural and visitor economy.

The Area contains a range of residential, business (including Stakehill Industrial 
Estate [SIE]), farmland, greenbelt and rail & major road links. 

Of particular note are a Grade II listed church, St John the Evangelist Thornham; 
Thornham Cricket Club; the Richard Bentley Smalley Memorial Hall (Charity no. 

Page 29



228619); the Rochdale Canal; and Gerrard Wood (described in GMSF draft October 
2016 as a Site of Biological Importance [SBI]).

There are three schools within the Plan Area, namely; Cardinal Langley RC High 
School & Sixth Form; St John’s Thornham CE (VA) Primary School; and St John 
Fisher RC Primary School. 

Businesses outside of the SIE footprint include a number of farms, hotels & a 
spa/fitness centre, residential and nursing care homes, bed & breakfast 
accommodation, skip hire, two garden centres, car sales, three public houses and a 
fuel station with convenience shop. The Area also has a number of licenced mobile 
kiosks for drinks/sandwich/hot food which are well used by local residents & workers, 
along with passing trade.

Stakehill Industrial Estate - the Forum fully acknowledge Rochdale Council’s aim to 
focus on economic growth as part of its Adopted Core Strategy [Oct 2016] and we 
recognise the Council’s wish to further enhance and promote employment within the 
Estate’s current footprint.

We have, therefore, excluded the SIE footprint from our NPA but reserve the right to 
comment on and/or object to specific planning applications within the SIE footprint, as 
deemed appropriate by Forum members.

We also fully support the Council’s aims in protecting the Greenbelt. We see the 
Greenbelt in our NPA as an important asset for both the local and wider community 
which should be fully protected as per local and national legislation.

The Area’s housing is a variety of social & private rented, owner occupiers and 
supported living accommodation. 

A range of professionals live in the area including construction & environment 
specialists, clergy, teachers, and medical & legal specialists.

An initial consultation on the principles of a neighbourhood plan has been carried out 
by small group discussions and email. This was followed up with a leaflet delivery to 
all residential and business properties in the proposed Plan Area. The leaflet 
[attached] invited everyone to a local meeting. At this meeting explanations of the 
process and presentations where given. A Q&A session followed. The first formal 
meeting of the Forum was held on 6th January 2018. This meeting formalised the 
Forum name, proposed Plan Area and elected a Management Committee in 
accordance with the Constitution [attached] handed out. The proposed Plan Area has 
been amended (see map attached) following discussion with RMBC Planning Officers 
and Forum members.

A list of Forum officers and people who have agreed to be members to date is 
attached. They bring a range of expertise including, finance, marketing, tax, project 
management, information technology, education, medicine, accounting, logistics and 
sport, alongside business owners, walkers, equestrians, anglers and members of the 

Page 30



clergy. The majority of these forum members live or work in the Area. A number of 
these are small business owners with their businesses based in or dependent on the 
area. The Forum also has a Castleton Ward Councillor as a member.

As the Plan Area bisects two Parliamentary constituency areas [Rochdale and 
Heywood & Middleton] both Members of Parliament will be invited to join the Forum.

Members have expressed a desire to: 

 Engage with residents, businesses and visitors so that their needs are taken 
into account;  

 Be open to development in the Area whilst protecting its assets for the benefit 
of both local residents and the wider community;

 Look to protect the Area’s heritage whilst encouraging sympathetic tourism and 
outdoor activity;

Continually look at ways to improve the area for the benefit of all.

Page 31



6. Membership of proposed Neighbourhood Forum

A minimum of 21 members is required, each of whom must live, work or carry out 
business in the neighbourhood area, or be an elected member (whose area falls 
within the neighbourhood area).

The Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012 require a Neighbourhood Forum to 
comprise a good cross section of the Neighbourhood Area so as to be considered 
representative.

Initial Lives in area 
Postcode

Business in 
area

Works in 
area

Cllr or MP

BA Y    
SB Y    
CB Y    
GB Y    
RB Y    
PB Y    
JB Y    
LB Y    
BB Y    
CB Y    
IB Y    
LB Y    
SB Y    
CB Y    
JB Y    
AB Y    
SB Y    
EC Y    
SC Y    
RC Y    
NC Y    
WC Y    
MC Y    
LC Y    
SC Y    
MC Y    
HC Y    
DD Y    
MD Y    
DD Y    
HD Y    
ED Y    
FD Y    

Page 32



AD Y Y   
VD Y Y   
RD Y    
ME Y    
AE Y    
PE Y  y  
SF Y    
SF Y    
DF Y    
HG Y    
SG Y    
JG Y y   
GG Y    
JH Y    
WH Y    
BH Y    
PH Y    
BH Y    
HJ Y    
JK Y    
JK Y    
RL Y    
SL Y    
PM Y    
RM Y    
VM Y    
SM Y    
JM Y    
KM Y    
JM Y    
MM Y    
KM Y    
FN Y    
KN Y    
PN Y    
GO Y    
TO Y    
SO Y    
KO Y    
LO Y    
MP Y    
EP Y    
RP Y    
JP Y    
AP Y    
DP Y  Y  

Page 33



JP Y    
MP Y    
AP Y    
SQ Y Y   
RQ Y    
HR Y    
PS Y Y   
KS Y Y   
AS Y    
JS Y    
BS Y   Y
ZS Y    
JS Y    
GS Y    
SS Y    
LS Y    
AS Y    
DS Y    
NS Y    
SS Y  Y  
PS Y    
GT Y    
JT Y    
ST Y    
AW Y    
KW Y    
MW Y    
GW Y  Y  
JW Y    
RW Y    
AW Y    
MW Y    
PW Y Y   
JW Y    
DW Y    
JY Y    

Page 34



7. Declaration:
I hereby apply for the designation of a neighbourhood area as described in this form 
and shown on the accompanying plan.

Signed: Gordon Tilstone

Dated: 03/05/2018

8. Next Steps

Following the submission of the neighbourhood forum and area application form the  
Council will:

- check the application is valid;
- publish the application for a minimum six week period to allow for 

representations; and
- consider representations and make a decision whether to designate a 

neighbourhood forum and area.

Once a neighbourhood forum is designated it can then engage and consult with the 
wider community to develop a plan for their neighbourhood.

Please submit this form, and attached documentation, by email at 
LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk 

Alternatively, please post the form and supporting documents to:

Strategic Planning Service
Number 1 Riverside
Smith Street, 
Rochdale, 
OL16 1XU

Page 35

mailto:LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk


Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13th June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Liam O’Rourke, 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources

Report Author Clare Poole
Public/Private Document Public

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

The statutory review of Polling Districts and Polling Places is due to begin and 
the consultation period will start on 2 July 2018.
Elected members play an important role in the consultation and participation is 
required to contribute to the recommendations.
A final report on any recommendations arising from the review will be taken to 
full Council on 17 October 2018 for approval. 

Recommendation

2. All townships to contribute to the review of Polling Districts and Polling places 
and make any recommendations to the review. 

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Electoral Administration Act 2013 included a new provision altering the 
timing of statutory reviews of parliamentary polling districts and polling places. 
This meant that all local authorities were required to complete a statutory 
review between 1 October 2013 and 31 January 2015. 
Subsequent compulsory reviews must be started and completed within the 
period of 16 months that starts on 1 October of every fifth year after 1 October 
2013. 
This review must be completed and implemented by the end of December 
2018, so for the changes to be included in the register on 1 December this 
year, Full Council must consider and confirm the proposals at their meeting on 
17 October 2018.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The Electoral Administration Act 2013 requires electoral registration officers to 
review the borough’s polling districts and places every 5 years.

Page 36

Agenda Item 11



4.2 The process requires a period of public consultation which will start on 2 July 
2018.

4.3 Members role in contributing to the review is the local knowledge and links 
they have with the local communities of their wards to develop the most 
appropriate alignment of polling district boundaries and polling stations with 
the most suitable facilities to serve the electorate.

4.4 To allow for efficient publication of the register of electors, including any 
proposed alterations to polling districts, Council will be required to consider 
any amendments in October so that they can be included in the annual 
revision of the register of electors on 1 December. 

4.5 Any changes to polling stations will be implemented in time for the local 
elections in 2019.

4.6 Any alternative polling districts or polling stations proposed during the 
consultation period will be considered.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. No direct financial implications.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this 
report.
There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.
There will be equality/community impact assessments completed during the 
consultation process on the proposals made.
The formal commencement of the review requires the local authority to give 
notice of the holding of a review and there are statutory requirements in 
respect of the display and publishing of the notice. 
 A ‘review’ means all the steps set out in Schedule A1 to the Representation 
of the People Act 1983.

6.1

6.2
6.3

6.4

6.5

Consultation

7.1
7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Public consultation will start on Monday 2 July until Friday 27 July.
All elected members, MP’s and local political party offices will be contacted 
during the consultation period inviting them to make submissions.
Other interested parties will be contacted inviting them to make submissions 
– disability groups, community groups, voluntary organisations etc.
Details of the consultation will be on public deposit at Number One Riverside, 
Customer Service Centres in Heywood, Middleton, Milnrow and Littleborough 
and available to view on the council’s website.
Final recommendations will be made for Full Council approval on 17 October.

Page 37



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Clare Poole, Tel: 01706 924818, 
clare.poole@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 38



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13 June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Daalat Ali 

Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Development & 
Property

Report Author Nigel MacDonald
Public/Private Document Public

Land at Turners Place, Rochdale

Executive Summary

1. This report relates to an area of land that is incapable of independent 
development adjacent to a successful flat development at Turners Place. 
There are issues regarding the inability for bin wagons to service the property 
safely and a minor area of trespass that needs remedying. The proposed land 
sale deals with all these issues.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that the land identified in this report be declared surplus to 
requirements and that it is released for disposal to the developers of the flats.

Reason for Recommendation

3. In order to create a safe turning facility for the Council’s bin wagons to service 
the site and to remedy a minor trespass issue.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

The land is at a higher level to the surrounding Council owned land and is 
incapable of independent development and provides a small ‘windfall’ capital 
receipt for the Council.

Alternatives Considered

The land could be retained, but this will mean that bin wagons will continue to 
struggle to service the development safely and the Council will continue to 
own the site and its liabilities without any beneficial return, financial or 
otherwise.

Page 39

Agenda Item 12



Costs and Budget Summary

5. This will produce a small capital receipt for the Council. 

Risk and Policy Implications

It is government policy that local authorities should dispose of surplus land 
where possible. Local authorities are given powers under s123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to dispose of land held by them in any manner they 
wish, including: sale of freehold; grant of a lease; and assignment of any 
unexpired term of a lease. The only constraint is that, except with the 
consent of the Secretary of State, the disposal must be for the best 
consideration reasonably obtainable.

6.

Consultation

7. Environmental Management confirm there is an issue with servicing this 
development and they are anxious for a solution to be delivered.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers N/A

For Further Information Contact: Nigel MacDonald, Tel: 01706 923275, 
nigel.macdonald@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 40



Page 41



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13th June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Daalat Ali - 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder for 
Planning & Development

Report Author Janet Butterworth
Public/Private Document Public

Disposal of Surplus Sites in Rochdale Township Area

Executive Summary

1. A number of sites in Rochdale Township are being recommended for disposal.  The 
sits are considered to be surplus to the Council’s operational requirements.
The sale of the sites would generate capital receipts for the Council and reduce its 
maintenance liabilities.

Recommendation

2.1 The site at Woodbine Street is declared surplus to requirements and released for 
disposal. (Plan 1 Plot 1)

2.2 The site at Moss Mill Street is declared surplus to requirements and released for 
disposal. (plan 1 plot 2)

2.3 The site at Manchester Road is declared surplus to requirements and released for 
disposal. (plan 2 Plot 2)

2.4 The site at Healing Street, Rochdale is declared surplus to requirements and 
released for disposal.(plan 3)

2.5 The Head of Legal Service be authorised to prepare the appropriate legal documents 
and execute such documents on behalf of the Council.

2.6 The purchaser pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs.

Reason for Recommendation

The Director of Economy is charged with the continual review of the Council’s land 
and property holdings to identify those that are surplus to requirements and could be 
sold. 

3.1 Woodbine Street land was acquired by the Council as a housing clearance site in 
1997 and has been maintained as a landscaped grass verge.  The release of the site 
would generate a capital receipt and reduce maintenance liabilities.

Page 42

Agenda Item 13



3.2 Moss Mill Street was acquired as a housing clearance site in 2006.  It has been 
maintained as a grassed area.  The release of the site would generate a capital 
receipt and reduce maintenance liabilities.

3.3 Manchester Road, Castleton is an unmaintained area of grassland.  It has been 
included in a planning application by an adjoining landowner.  The release of the site 
would generate a capital receipt.

3.4 Healing Street is an area of amenity grassland.  The release of the site would 
generate a capital receipt and reduce maintenance liabilities.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The Woodbine Street site is a small rectangular shaped piece of land in Kingsway 
Ward.  It extends to approximately 0.1 hectares (0.25 acres) in size and is defined in 
the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) as ‘Defined Urban Area’.  
It is bounded on 3 sides by housing with commercial uses to the remaining side.  
Initial talks with the Council planners have highlighted that residential or commercial 
development of this site would be supported.

4.2 The Moss Mill Street site is a small rectangular shaped piece of land in Kingsway 
Ward.  It extends to approximately 0.02 hectares (0.04 acres) in size and is defined in 
the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) as ‘Defined Urban Area’.  
It is bounded on all sides by housing.  

Initial talks with the Council planners have highlighted that residential development of 
this site would be supported.

4.3 The Manchester Road site is a small triangular shaped piece of land in Kingsway 
Ward.  It extends to approximately 0.05 hectares (0.11 acres) in size and is defined in 
the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) as ‘Defined Urban Area’.  

The site is bounded by the motorway to the south, Manchester Road to the east and 
the Trub farm development to the North and west.

It is unlikely that the site on its own could support development but it could be 
incorporated with the adjoining scheme and indeed has been included in the Trub 
Farm planning application

4.4 The Healing Street site is a small piece of land in Balderstone and Kirkholt ward.  It 
extends to approximately 0.07hectares (0.1.7 acres) in size and is defined in the 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) as ‘Defined Urban Area’.  

It is bounded on all sides by housing.

Initial talks with the Council planners have highlighted that residential or commercial 
development of this site would be supported.

4.5 Alternatives Considered
These sites could be retained in their existing uses. Retention of these sites will not 
secure capital receipts or beneficial development, nor reduce the Council’s financial 
and/or environmental liabilities. Retaining these sites in their current use carries the 
risk of liabilities such as fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour and regular or ad hoc 
maintenance obligations

Page 43



Costs and Budget Summary

5. The disposal of these sites would generate a capital receipt.
There would be a small loss of revenue from the Dixon Fold site through the 
termination of the tenancies.

Risk and Policy Implications

The disposals will meet the objectives of the Council’s Asset Strategy by reducing 
the number of Council owned assets and maintenance liabilities. 

The Council is committed to release surplus assets and to continually review its 
need to hold land and property assets. Disposal of surplus assets assists the 
Council in its provision of services by producing capital receipts, reducing borrowing, 
reducing grant reliance and assists in achieving the efficiency targets. The disposal 
of surplus assets reduces the Council’s liabilities and the release of development 
opportunities encourages economic activity in the Borough. 

It is government policy that local authorities should dispose of surplus land where 
possible. Local authorities have various statutory powers to dispose of property. The 
only constraint is that, except with the consent of the Secretary of State, the 
disposal must be for the best consideration reasonably obtainable and terms should 
be negotiated accordingly.

6.

Consultation

7. Consultation has taken place with colleagues in Legal Services, Planning, Highways 
and Environmental Management 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Janet Butterworth, Tel: 01706 923271, 
janet.butterworth@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 44



Canalside and Moss Mill Street

Scale 1:1250

—-

© Crown copyright.Page 45



Trub 2

Scale 1:1250 I © Crown copyright.Page 46



Healing Street

Scale 1:1250
© Crown copyright.

Page 47



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13th June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Neil Emmott – 

Portfolio Holder for 
Environment

Report Author Michael Aiken
Public/Private Document Public 

Rochdale Highways Additional Spend Proposed Carriageway and 
Footway Programme 

Executive Summary

1. The purpose of this report is for Members to consider approving the suggested 
carriageway programme and selecting the footways which will form the 
footway programme.

Recommendation

2. 2.1 That the committee notes and approves the carriageway element of this 
programme and selects the footways to form the footway programme. 

2.2 Where events external to the Council require rapid response or agreement 
in principle, the committee authorise the Head of Highways to vary the 
programme in consultation with the Portfolio Holder and the Chair of the 
relevant Township committee..

Reason for Recommendation

3. 3.1 The recommended carriageway programme which has already been 
circulated to members has been produced based on condition, asset 
management principles, claims history and accident history. The programme 
aims to maximise the improvement to the network by carrying out the most 
efficient and cost effective works to the carriageway. 

3.2 The footway list which has been provided to members has been based on 
footway condition data, claims history and accident history. The list contains all 
of the footways which have been deemed structurally unsound and as such, 
require remediation work. Members are asked to choose schemes to make up 
the Rochdale allocation of the footway budget which stands at –

Asset Budget Allocation
Footway £792k

Page 48

Agenda Item 14



Key Points for Consideration

4. 4.1 This programme will address a number of highway related issues which 
will improve condition, reduce claim liability, improve safety and assist with the 
DfT self-assessment process which will maximise funding opportunities for the 
Borough. 

4.2 The footway list includes all of the structurally unsound footways and by 
selecting schemes from this list, the end programme will improve condition, 
claims liability and user safety 

Alternatives Considered
The alternative to carrying out this programme would be to select schemes 
based on condition only. This approach would lead to a deterioration of the 
network overall and it is poor asset management to treat only the worst roads 
in the area. Using an asset management approach will assist Rochdale in 
maintaining its current level three funding from the DfT.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. A budget of £12m has been made available for this programme and the 
budget is allocated between the Townships based on population size. The 
budgets splits are as follows – 

Township % Allocation
Heywood 14
Middleton 22
Pennine 20

Rochdale 44

Risk and Policy Implications

If members do not approve this programme, the condition of the network will 
continue to deteriorate which may impact on our ability to maintain the 
maximum funding level from the DfT. 

6.

Consultation

7. Consultation has occurred with the Leader of the Council and Members as 
part of this process. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. N/A

For Further Information Contact: Michael Aiken, 01706 942 534, 
Michael.aiken@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 49



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13th June 2018

Portfolio
Councillor Liam O’Rourke 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services

Report Author Peter Thompson
Public/Private Document For Publication

Rochdale Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 
2018/19

Executive Summary

1. To request the Township Committee confirm its delegated decision making 
arrangements and make appointments to the Township Sub-Committees, 
including the Chairs, Vice Chairs and substitute members; the appointment of 
“lead” opposition spokespersons; and the appointment to various Priority 
Groups and Other Township Bodies.

Recommendation

2.1 

2.2

2.3 

2.4   

2.5 

2.6  

That the current Sub-Committee structure of the Rochdale Township 
Committee comprising of the Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee and the terms of reference as at appendix 1 of the 
report be approved.  

That appointments to the Membership of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee be agreed in accordance with the 
established formula -

•   Labour - 7 seats
• Conservatives - 2 seats

That the Chair and Vice Chair of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Committee Delegated Sub-Committee be appointed.

That the ‘lead’ opposition spokespersons to the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee be appointed;

That the Substitute Members to the Rochdale Township Action & Resources 
Delegated Sub- Committee be appointed.  

That the relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to the following Area Forums:-

a. Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting
b. Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum
c. Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum
d. Castleton Area Forum
e. Central Rochdale Area Forum

Page 50

Agenda Item 15



2.7       

f. Healey Area Forum
g. Kingsway Area Forum
h. Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum
i. Norden Area Forum
j. Spotland and Falinge Area Forum

That Members be appointed to the following Township Bodies:-
a. Older Person’s Champion 
b. Younger Person’s Champion
c. Rochdale Township Clean and Green Priority Group
d. Rochdale Township Communities and Engagement Priority Group
e. Rochdale Township Members Regeneration Group
f. Rochdale Township Planning Panel

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution. 

The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter 
detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take 
a decision. 

Appointments are made, as far as is possible, in accordance with the 
Township Committee’s political balance,

The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub- Committee currently 
exercises formal powers as detailed at Appendix 1, as the Committee for 
dealing with ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the Township Committee and for 
making grant approvals and decisions on devolved budgets and Township 
Funds.  

a. The Committee has previously determined that the Township Sub-
Committees comprise nine Members and that they be appointed on a 
politically balanced basis within Rochdale Township whilst seeking as far 
as possible to ensure representation for each of the Township’s nine 
Wards. 

b. The political balance in Rochdale Township in 2018/19 for nine Member 
Sub-Committees is as follows: -

 Labour Group 21/27 x 9 = 7 seats

Page 51



4.3

 Conservative Group 6/27 x 9 = 2 seats 

c. The number of substitute Members appointed to the Sub-Committee 
should not exceed the number of ordinary seats held by that Group on 
that Committee or Sub-Committee, or three Substitute Members in total.

Area Forums – The Township Committee appoints appropriate Ward Members 
to the area forums. 

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves, but that this may have a detrimental 
impact on the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items 
of business.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The Committee is being asked to confirm its delegation arrangements to 
ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory 
procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-Committee and the 
working groups might limit member involvement in key initiatives for the 
Township.

Consultation

7. Not required.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers to this report.

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson: tel – 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk   

Page 52

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES 
DELEGATED SUB-COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

1. To receive and consider the minutes arising from meetings of the Ward/Area 
Forums and other Township Priority Groups and related bodies, referring matters 
of concern to the Township Committee.

2. To exercise the following delegated powers as detailed in Part 3 of the Council’s 
Constitution – Responsibility for Functions

A. Determination of objections/representations in respect of the Appointment 
of Hackney Carriage Stands

B. Urgent designation of a Conservation Area unless deemed to be strategic 
in nature by the relevant Director and where such items are not 
Development Plan Documents.

C. To deal with urgent matters within the remit of the Rochdale Township 
Committee

3. To exercise under delegated powers the following powers of the Rochdale 
Township Committee (as contained within Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution – 
Responsibility for Functions )
A. Confirmation of Traffic Regulation Orders which are the subject of 

objection by persons directly affected by the proposal (i.e. in occupation of 
premises in the immediate vicinity of the proposal) other than in 
circumstances where a Township Committee chooses not to confirm an 
Order deemed strategic in nature by the Director of Neighbourhoods in 
which case the matter shall be referred to the Cabinet

B. Closures or diversions of highways, including footpaths and bridleways, 
deemed to be contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods

C. Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, 
S.9)

D. Traffic regulation for special areas, for example, Country Park ( Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.22)

E. Pedestrian crossings, for example, pelican and zebra crossings (Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.23)

F. Street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.29)
G. Byelaws for street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.31)
H. Installation of road humps which are the subject of significant objections 

by people directly affected (as determined by the Director of 
Neighbourhoods)

I. Making Up of Private Streets – Part IX of Highways Act 1980
(i) The private street works code

Page 53



(ii) General
(iii) The advance payment code

J. Power to determine applications to make Orders under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 deemed

K. contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods
L. To keep definitive map and statement under review 
M. Power to make Footpath Creation Orders under the Highways Act 1980 

S.26
N. Reclassification of roads used as public paths under the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981
O. Power to designate public footpaths as cycle tracks under the Cycle 

Tracks Act 1984
P. Consideration of any other matter that may be referred to the Township 

relating to the regulation of highways, footpaths, bridleways etc. 

4. To have full responsibility for all aspects of devolution (including any related 
delegated budgets and Township Funds) and the implementation and 
development of the Township Plan.

5. To receive reports from ‘devolved’ and ‘influenced’ Services detailing their 
response to the Township priorities in the Township Plan and the development of 
their respective Service Plans to reflect those priorities.

6. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township Funds), 
to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met or are capable of being met before any decisions are made.

7. To consider and comment on quarterly monitoring reports on devolved funding 
with a subsequent report to Rochdale Township Committee.

8. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township Funds, 
ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions are made.

Page 54



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2017/18
9 The Township Committee considered a report of the Acting Director of 
Resources that asked Members to confirm the Committee’s delegated decision 
making arrangements and to make appointments to the Township Sub-Committees, 
including the Chairs, Vice Chairs and substitute members; the appointment of “lead” 
opposition spokespersons; and the appointment to various Priority Groups and Other 
Township Bodies.

The recommendations were presented as the Council has established and appoints 
Township Committees to undertake certain executive and non-executive powers, as 
set out in the Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Council’s 
Constitution. 

In addition the Township’s Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts 
on any matter detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is 
essential to take a decision. Appointments to the Sub-Committee are made, as far as 
is possible, in accordance with the Township Committee’s political balance. The 
proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the undertaking of 
delegated functions in accordance with statutory and procedural requirements, and 
appointments to Working Groups and Other Bodies are required to enable the 
Township Committee to undertake and to respond to the full range of issues relevant 
to the Township.

Alternatives considered: the Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-
committees and undertake all delegated functions themselves, but that this may 
have a detrimental impact on the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with 
urgent items of business.

DECIDED – That (1) the current Sub-Committee structure of the Rochdale 
Township Committee comprising of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee and the terms of reference, as outlined 
at Appendix 1 of the submitted report, be approved;
(2) Members be appointed as follows: – 
(a) Rochdale Township Action and Resources Sub-Committee: 
Councillors – Cecile Biant (Chair), Shakil Ahmed (Vice Chair); Sultan Ali, 
Heakin, Nickson, Sheerin, Sullivan, Winkler and Zaman;
Substitute Members - Councillors Holly, O’Neill, Rashid and Zaheer;
The opposition spokesperson be Councillor Sullivan;
(b) The relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to attend their respective 
Ward Forum; 
(c) Clean and Green Priority Group - Councillors Shakil Ahmed (Chair), 
Hornby (Vice Chair), Ali Ahmed, Cocks, Heakin Holly, Howard, Meredith, and 
Zaheer;
Substitute Members – Cecile Biant, O’Neill and Rashid; 
(d) Communities and Engagement Priority Group – Councillors Rashid 
(Chair), Nickson (Vice Chair), Ali Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Cocks, Duckworth, 
Gartside, Wazir and Zaheer;
Substitute Members – Sultan Ali, Cecile Biant, Sullivan and Zaman;  

Page 55



(e) Rochdale Regeneration Members Group – Councillors O’Neill (Chair), 
Cecile Biant (Vice Chair), Sultan Ali, Brosnan, Holly, Meredith, Sheerin, 
Sullivan and Zaheer;
Substitute Members – Shakil Ahmed, Surinder Biant, Brett and Gartside;
(f) Township Older Persons Champion – Councillor Sheerin;
(g) Township Young Persons Champion – Councillor Meredith;
(3) any amendments to the appointments be delegated to the Chair of the 
Rochdale Township Committee.
Eligible for Call-in: No.

TOWNSHIP PLANNING PANELS
20 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of
Economy which set out proposals for the determination of Township
engagement with current and emerging Planning Proposals and the priorities
for the use of current or prospective S106 funds.
The report was presented to seek the views of elected Members in relation to
planning applications and S106 funds which impact on the Township in order
to provide the benefit of the understanding of the local environment to inform
Planning decisions.
Alternatives Considered - The alternative option was to retain existing
arrangements. Officers had discounted this option as it would not realise the
benefits of local knowledge the Townships could input into planning decisions.

DECIDED - That (1) matters relating to S106 funds which reside within
the Township are to be considered by the Rochdale Action and
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee;
(2) a Rochdale Township Planning Panel be formed consisting of
one Member from each ward, excluding those appointed to the Planning
& Licensing Committee, to act as a consultative body in relation to
proposed and submitted planning applications;
(3) Members be appointed to the Rochdale Township Planning
Panel as follows: –
Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward - Councillor Nickson
Bamford Ward- Ward Member to be notified
Castleton Ward – Ward Member to be notified
Central Rochdale Ward - Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Kingsway Ward - Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Milkstone and Deeplish Ward - Councillor Zaheer (Chair)
Norden Ward – Councillors Gartside, Holly, and Winkler (1 member be in
attendance per meeting subject to availability)
Spotland and Falinge Ward - Councillor Cecile Biant
Healey Ward - Councillor Wazir
Eligible for Call – In - No

Page 56



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13th June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Janet Emsley – 

Portfolio Holder for 
Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture

Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Rochdale Township Funds Review

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2017/18 and 
provides options for the allocation of funds in 2018/19.

1.2 Members are asked to approve Rochdale Township Funds terms and 
conditions, and agree delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2017/18 (Appendix 1 
and 2).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2017/18 
(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded 
(Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Rochdale Township Funds to funding 
streams in 2018/19 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Rochdale Township revenue 
and capital funds for 2018/19 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Rochdale Township Funds 
2018/19 as detailed at 4.6 of this report.

2.6 Members agree any uncommitted/unspent funds be reallocated to a central 
revenue or capital funding stream as appropriate before the end of January 
2019 to enable Members to spend/commit all Rochdale Township Funds 
during 2018/19 financial year.

Page 57

Agenda Item 16



3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Rochdale Township Fund is delegated to the Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2 Rochdale Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 
Township revenue and capital funds 2017/18 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2017/18 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported 
to the next scheduled funding committee.

4.2 A review of Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds has been 
undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2018/19.

4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Rochdale 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a difference 
to the local community with improvements to local facilities, increased social 
interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All successful 
applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete a 
project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as 
detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2017/18 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2018/19 as detailed in Appendix 5.

4.5 Terms and conditions for Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds have 
been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 
2018/19 (Appendix 6).

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Rochdale 
Township Funds 2018/19 as follows:

a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, 
Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action 
& Resources Delegated Sub Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.  Any disputes 

Page 58



concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

b) Rochdale Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for 
decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all 
Members are aware of projects that have been approved.

4.7 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Rochdale Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2017/18 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Rochdale Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2018/19 in Appendix 5.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Rochdale Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

7. Consultation

7.1 None

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 59



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2016/17 129,483          54.34% 97.80%

Base Budget 2017/18 185,800          

Income/Adjustments 2017/18 27,300            

Total budget for 2017/18 342,583          

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 186,150          

Commitments 148,903          

Total Actual + Commitments 335,054          

Budget Remaining 2017/18 7,529              

Forecast Outturn 342,583          

Potential over/underspend -                     

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2016/17

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2017/18

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2017/18   

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2017/18 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2017/18

      £ 

Members Fund -                     54,000      -                       54,000      14,990           24,005          1,541          13,464       54,000       0                 

Ward Fund -                     72,000      -                       72,000      30,734           15,532          400             25,334       72,000       -                  

Projects Fund 9,485              19,800      27,300             56,585      28,068           11,844          (8,962)        18,609       49,559       7,026          

Clean & Green Priority Fund -                     20,000      -                       20,000      10,264           4,665            521             4,550         20,000       -                  

Communities & Engagement Priority Fund -                     20,000      -                       20,000      10,600           9,395            5                 -                 20,000       -                  

Township Allocated Funds (pre 2017/18) 119,998          -                -                       119,998    54,247           29,553          6,494          29,200       119,495     503             

Total 129,483          185,800    27,300             342,583    148,903         94,994          (1)               91,157       335,054     7,529          

 REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE 7,529        

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2017/18

P
age 60



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2016/17 38,600       51.96% 96.78%

Base Budget 2017/18 182,000     

Income/Adjustments 2017/18 -                 

Total budget for 2017/18 220,600     

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 114,628     

Commitments 98,879       

Total Actual + Commitments 213,507     

Budget Remaining 2017/18 7,093         

Forecast Outturn 220,600     

Potential over/underspend -                 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2016/17

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2017/18

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2017/18   

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2017/18 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2017/18

      £ 

Armed Forces Fund 8,800         -                 -                       8,800          -                   2,468          -                 -                2,468       6,332          

Capital Fund 29,800       182,000     -                       211,800      98,879          11,528        -                 100,632     211,039   761             

Total 38,600       182,000     -                       220,600      98,879          13,996        -                 100,632     213,507   7,093          

  CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE  761            

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2017/18

P
age 61



1 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 

 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2017/18 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects Fund £19,800 
Base Budget 

 
£9,485 

b/f 2016/17 
 

£27,300 
Public Health 

Allocation 

Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Rochdale Township.  Rochdale's Public Health Service contributed funds for 
health and wellbeing related projects to benefit the local community. 
 
Funds were used to support 18 projects during 2017/18 consisting of 11 community projects and 7 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included weekly peer support sessions hosted by Rochdale 
Connections Trust with a focus on therapeutic activities and cooking to promote health and wellbeing for women who 
have experienced domestic violence; reinforce fencing on Ashworth Road to improve its stability/safety; Festival of 
Friendship with activities in Broadfield Park to celebrate and embrace the positivity of living in a diverse borough; 
creation of a community art space in Touchstones Rochdale; support four events in Falinge Park in 2018 that aim to 
improve the health and wellbeing of residents; workshops to raise awareness and educate the local community about 
health issues; refurbishment of the training rooms at Castlemere Community Centre; study of the traffic signal junction 
at Bury Road and Sandy Lane to identify improvements to optimise traffic flows and the feasibility of pedestrian 
controlled facilities; removal of the shrub bed in the vicinity of High Street and Union Street Car Park as it is 
overgrown and attracts anti-social behaviour; contribution to the Classic Car and Bike Show 2018; Kramblers 
Rochdale ‘Walking Fit and Connected’ project that aims to address the poor levels of activity/health management 
within the BME community (aged 40+) and support work on tackling obesity and improving the mobility within this 
target group; Northern Baroque Orchestra concert; Read and Feed initiative at Balderstone Library during the summer 
holidays; create a safe public access to Rochdale Sports Club involving the refurbishment of the disabled access 
ramp and steps at the entrance. 
 
At year end unallocated balances from other revenue funding streams were transferred into this budget to provide 
Members with the opportunity to identify and fund projects that have not been progressed due to lack of funds in those 
individual funding streams.  An unallocated amount of £7,026 will be carried forward to the Projects Fund 2018/19 for 
allocation. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund in 2018/19 retains a base budget of £19,800 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

 

P
age 62



2 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Ward Fund £72,000 
Base Budget 

Each Rochdale Township Ward received £8,000 to enable the Area Forums to maintain their success and 
effectiveness in addressing local issues raised at these community meetings. 
 
This fund was used to support 51 projects during 2017/18 consisting of 24 community projects and 27 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included construction of a tarmac path in Balderstone Park to 
link the play area to the skate park; event for older residents to socialise and participate in an indoor bowling 
competition and awards ceremony; netball kits for Bamford Bolts; provision of a tarmacadam surface to improve the 
footway from Oulder Hill Drive to Oulder Hill School and the Leisure Centre; additional 20mph signage on various 
streets around St Edward’s Primary School; equipment for Castleton Mustangs Under 7s Rugby Team; reinstate the 
footpath across Cronkeyshaw Common with a tarmac surface; introduce landscaping features to restrict unauthorised 
access to Cronkeyshaw Common and enhance this green space; installation of two bollards on Shawclough Road to 
prevent vehicles parking on the public footpath and causing an obstruction; supply salt bins on Charter Street and 
Ansdell Road; contribution to weekly sessions and an awareness event to improve the health, wellbeing and welfare 
of the local community in Deeplish; installation of a knee rail, four bollards and a swing barrier at the access points to 
grassed land in the Redfearn Wood area to prevent vehicles using it as a cut through; contribution towards the 
creation of a sensory garden at Spotland Primary School. 
 
An unallocated amount of £400 was transferred to the Projects Fund at the end of February 2018 for allocation to 
projects identified before year end. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Ward Fund in 2018/19 retains a base budget of £72,000 with each Ward allocated £8,000. 

Members Fund £54,000 
Base Budget 

Each Rochdale Township Councillor received £2,000 to allocate to projects within their Ward for the benefit of the 
local community and environment. 
 
Funds were used to support 77 projects during 2017/18 consisting of 44 community projects and 33 
highways/environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included a ‘Winter Wonderland’ Christmas event at 
Balderstone Library and Park for the local community; equipment and screening costs for a community film club; 
saddle planters outside Castleton swimming pool; Rochdale Science Extravaganza event; Shawclough and Healey 
gateway sign; women’s cycling project; play equipment for Sparth Nursery; community engagement event in 
Stoneyfield Park; trees for Moss Road woodland; Caldershaw Primary School Anglo-French landscaping scheme; 
contribution to new benches and bins for Denehurst Park; exercise and movement sessions for over 50s to improve 
and maintain physicality, motor skills, cognitive skills whilst enhancing social connections and interactions. 
 
An unallocated amount of £1,541 was transferred to the Projects Fund at the end of January 2018 for allocation to 
projects identified before year end. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Members Fund in 2018/19 retains a base budget of £54,000 for each Rochdale Township Councillor to be allocated 
£2,000. 

P
age 63



3 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Clean & Green 
Priority Fund 

£20,000 
Base Budget 

The Clean & Green Priority Fund was established to attain and maintain high environmental standards for Rochdale 
Township’s public spaces and assets.  The Clean & Green Priority Group identified/developed environmental projects 
and influenced funding decisions. 
 
Funds were used to support 11 environmental projects during 2017/18.  The variety of projects funded included eco-
activities for young people in Rochdale Township’s parks and countryside sites; community clean-up programme 
involving young people consisting of litter picks at Moss Street, Sparth, Newbold, Falinge, Freehold and Kirkholt, and 
planting seeds at Moss Street and tidying the outside of the Youth Centre during creative days in the school holidays; 
a second hand steel shipping container for Kellett Street Allotments to store equipment to address the problem of 
thefts from the allotment site; provision of new benches and litter bins in Denehurst Park to replace broken, burnt out 
or vandalised street furniture; installation of knee rail fencing to prevent unauthorised vehicles accessing Taylor Park, 
Norden; planters and bedding plants to enhance the Rochdale in Bloom judging route; planting and replacement 
paving around Deeplish Community Centre; creation of a sensory garden at Spotland Primary School; programme of 
activities to be delivered by Bangladesh Association and Community Project to educate residents and raise 
environmental awareness; create an ‘Urban Moorland’ Garden Walking Trail off Ings Lane, Spotland with advice 
information boards to encourage local people to exercise; expand the Stoney Hill biodiversity meadow by developing 
an area of land. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Clean & Green Priority Fund retains a base budget of £20,000 in 2018/19. 

Communities & 
Engagement 
Priority Fund 

£20,000 
Base Budget 

The Communities & Engagement Priority Fund was established to encourage residents and community groups to get 
involved in shaping and delivering services and initiatives to meet local needs.  The Communities & Engagement 
Priority Group identified/developed community projects and influenced funding decisions. 
 
Funds were used to support 19 community related projects during 2017/18.  The variety of projects funded included 
installation of a two-tier stair lift at the Crescent Centre to make the community radio station’s facilities accessible; 
Stoneyfield Family Fun Day to improve relations, mutual respect and better understanding between different 
communities, generations, faiths and cultures, and in particular between the Police and local youth; International Food 
Festival in Falinge Park to enhance the understanding of different countries’ traditions through cuisine, dance and 
crafts; weekly sessions and an awareness event at Deeplish Community Centre to improve the health, wellbeing and 
welfare of the local community with the focus on isolated and disadvantaged elderly people; Multi Activity Club 
offering regular weekly sports, fitness and physical activity sessions to children 8-12 years old for 25 weeks; a 
community based short film project to give the wider community an insight into the Pakistani/Kashmiri perspective; 
contribution towards the equipment needed to refurbish the Rochdale Soup Kitchen. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Communities & Engagement Priority Fund retains a base budget of £20,000 in 2018/19. 

P
age 64



4 

 

 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £182,000 
Base Budget 

 
£29,800 

b/f 2016/17 
 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver projects/schemes that benefit the Township’s community and environment, 
and realise the Township priorities in 2017/18.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the 
community via Area Forums. 
 
Funds were used to support 25 projects during 2017/18 consisting of 5 community projects and 20 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included traffic calming measures and 20mph zone on 
Longfield Road; introduction of waiting restrictions on Woodbine Street East/Lockhart Street Junction; visitor 
interpretation boards and signage to educate the public and direct visitors to areas of interest on Rooley Moor Road 
relating to local history; replacement of a grass verge on Bury Road with bitmac to create a safe and level hard 
standing; supplement the existing waiting restrictions and aid the two-way flow of traffic on Crawford Street to ease 
access and egress from local business premises; enhance lining, road markings and signage on Shawclough Road to 
improve the safety of drivers exiting the junction of Shawclough Way into Shawclough Road; installation of a disabled 
access toilet to meet the needs of the elderly and disabled people who use the premises when seeking support from 
Rochdale Women's Welfare Association; provision of a new pavilion for Cutgate Bowling Club; installation of two 
drainage channels, new pipework and connections on South Street, Rochdale to reduce footway water flows; dropped 
kerb at Springfield Hospice Tea Room; installation of two pieces of toddlers play equipment in Denehurst Park Play 
Area; improve the security of the buildings occupied by Vintage Worx Community Development Trust by replacing the 
external doors. 
 
Unallocated funds of £761 and committed funds of £99,129 will be carried forward to 2018/19. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund retains a base budget of £182,000 in 2018/19 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

Armed Forces 
Fund 

£8,800 
b/f 2016/17 

Rochdale Township received a budget of £20,000 for a four year period in 2014/15 for updating and enhancing 
existing memorials and introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-
1918). 
 
This fund was used to deliver 1 project during 2017/18.  A local experienced mason was commissioned to improve the 
visual appearance of Norden War Memorial.  In addition, a flagpole was installed near Norden War Memorial so the 
Union flag can be flown and incorporated into remembrance services. 
 
Unallocated funds of £6,332 will be carried forward to 2018/19. 
 

 

P
age 65



APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

 

  

“…pleasure to see children fully engaged 
with all attractions and my 11 year old son 
sharing with everybody his passion for 
science” 
Mohammed Rahman 
Lead Organiser/Volunteer 

Wardleworth Community Centre 

 

Recipient: Wardleworth Community Centre 

Project: Rochdale Science Extravaganza 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £1,050 

 

Wardleworth Community Centre aims to improve the quality of life of the local community 
through the provision of educational, social welfare, leisure and recreational services.  
Working in partnership with statutory and voluntary organisations, the centre delivers a wide 
variety of activities and events to support the needs of local residents such as a multi faith 
luncheon club for over 50’s, IT skills courses, driving theory training, play scheme, Talk 
English classes, job club, youth clubs for boys and girls and welfare advice sessions. 

 
On 18 March 2018 Wardleworth Community Centre hosted a Rochdale Science 
Extravaganza to celebrate science in conjunction with British Science Week that provided 
entertaining and engaging events and activities across the UK for people of all ages.  
Rochdale Science Extravaganza educated and inspired the local community with exhibitions 
such as a rock pool experience to learn about the species living on the British Coast with 
hands-on sessions, interactive games and discussion; interactive and educational 
experiences with exotic animals; mobile science lab with ‘hands on’ practical science 
experimentation with a focus on a mix of chemistry and physics, teaching children in an 
exciting and enlightening way to inspire budding new Marie Curies, Darwins, Einsteins and 
Bells, and Intouch Communities ‘Your pathway to becoming a doctor’ that provided an  

Page 66



insight for children and young people into the medical profession through activities that 
encouraged scientific curiosity, inquisitiveness and critical thinking. 

Rochdale Science Extravaganza had an amazing turnout despite the adverse weather 
(5cm-7cm of snowfall) with the local community expressing in the British Science Week 
questionnaire how they are much more interested in science after their experiences at the 
event. 

On Sunday 12 March 2017 our community for the first time ever experienced a science 
festival.  It came about because of a ten year old boy’s love of everything science.  A science 
enthusiast for many years had wanted to host a science related event because “it’s miles to 
travel to Manchester or Birmingham, so why not do something in my town”.  Ten year old 
Labib said “It’s very important to have this science day because I know what I want to be 
when I’m older, no matter how difficult or crazy it is.  Some of my friends and neighbours 
don’t know what they want to be and I want people to go for their dreams”.  Our previous 
science event was beyond expectation and in 2018 we aimed to inspire. 
Mohammed Rahman 
Lead Organiser/Volunteer 

Wardleworth Community Centre 

Page 67



Page 68



Dr Majid from Intouch Communities was showing an eleven year old boy around his stall and 
asked him if he wanted to be a doctor when he is older.  He replied “I don’t think I am clever 
enough” to which Dr Majid replied “son, I wasn’t as clever as you when I was your age.  If I 
can become a doctor with hard work so can you!”  Many other similar occurrences took place 
throughout the day, dispelling preconceived ideas in relation to scientific careers. 
Mohammed Rahman 
Lead Organiser/Volunteer 

Wardleworth Community Centre 

Page 69



“…children had an opportunity to read and 
discuss the books they are reading, 
participate in arts and crafts, and one of 
the biggest things, interact with children 
they would not normally be in the company 
of” 
Stuart Howarth 
Team Leader, Libraries & Customer 
Access 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 

Project: Fit, Feed and Read (Balderstone Library and Belfield Library) 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £3,500 to each library 

Balderstone and Belfield Libraries’ Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative throughout the school 
summer holidays (24 July to 1 September 2017) to provide every child aged 5-11 who joined 
the Summer Reading Challenge 2017 with a free lunch on Mondays, Thursdays and Fridays 
between 11am and 2.30pm and Tuesdays between 11am to 12.30pm at Balderstone Library 
and Belfield Library offered children a free lunch on Mondays, Tuesdays and Thursdays 
between 11am and 2.30pm.  The children had an opportunity to read and discuss the books 
they are reading, participate in arts and crafts and get active with outdoor sports sessions. 

Animal Agents was the name of the Summer Reading Challenge 2017 that aimed to get 
children into libraries to keep up their reading skills and confidence during the long holidays.  
The Challenge has a different theme each year and children can read whatever they like - fact 
books, joke books, picture books, audio books - just as long as they are borrowed from the 
library.  Children receive special rewards each time they finish a book and there's a certificate 
and medal for everyone who completes the Challenge.  The Summer Reading Challenge is 
open to all primary school aged children and is designed for all reading abilities. Schools work 
with local libraries and give out information to encourage children to take part, and most 
libraries run a Summer Reading Challenge linked to early year’s activity for pre-schoolers. 

Page 70

https://readingagency.org.uk/children/practitioners-guides/summer-reading-challenge-resources-for-teachers.html


The theme of Animal Agents, illustrated by the UK's best-selling children's illustrator Tony 
Ross, was about a detective agency manned by all kinds of clever animals.  By reading and 
visiting the library through the holidays, children received a special Animal Agents detective 
folder, a host of stickers (some with mysterious smells) and other goodies, plus a medal and a 
certificate when they read any six books over the summer holidays.  The Summer Reading 
Challenge website allowed children to log the books they read during the summer – and 
beyond.  Also they could find new books to read, recommended by other children, watch 
exclusive author videos, take part in competitions and play games. 

Link4Life had planned to deliver Fit and Fed sessions during the summer holidays and after 
discovering the Library Service were planning on extending the Read and Feed initiative across 
the borough, they viewed it as an ideal opportunity to combine the projects to share resources 
and offer more provision to more young people who were in need of it.  A link established with 
FareShare (a charity that helps organisations working with people who could go hungry by 
distributing surplus food from the food industry) facilitated the provision of over 450 meals to the 
young people who were attending the Fit, Feed and Read sessions across the borough.  
Heywood Civic Centre was the central delivery site for the food as it had appropriate storage 
space for the large quantity of drinks, cereal bars and biscuits each week before the food was 
then distributed to each venue.  A local caterer was used to supply sandwiches alongside the 
food from Fareshare to guarantee each child received a lunch and not be solely reliant on the 
fluctuating quantity of surplus food.  Two multi-sport coaches facilitated the sports sessions 
utilising space in and around the library.  Sports were adapted to the space, eg tennis was 
delivered inside a library with softer balls and a portable net.  Over 22 coaches worked on the 
Fit, Feed and Read sessions with the majority living within the borough.  As well as having 
qualifications in sport and leisure, the coaches who facilitated the sessions engaged with young 
people from the different areas and the diversity of the workforce reflected the various 

Page 71



communities the sessions were being delivered in.  The coaches also supported the morning 
read sessions at some of the venues where staffing was stretched.  Young people who 
attended regularly were given free family swim vouchers. 

Fit, Feed and Read has attracted young people into each library to experience reading for 
pleasure, inspire their creativity, develop relationships with others and get active.  The 
provision of a free lunch has ensured some consistency for those children who are in receipt of 
free school meals. 

Link4Life propose to link future projects with the Link4Life Healthy Weight Team who 
will be providing family cooking on a budget workshops.  It would also be useful to 
upskill local people to help support the sessions, ie food hygiene and cooking 
qualifications.  We have links with NCS (National Citizen Service) and groups of young 
people chose to come down to Darnhill, Balderstone and Junction Libraries to help out 
and implement skills they’d learned over the summer.  A video was produced by the 
NCS group www.youtube.com/watch?v=aaKU-JSObFE 
Scott Hardy 

Youth Intervention Officer, Link4Life 

Page 72



 

“The highlight was watching the Under 7’s 
playing in their first experience of team 
sport.  The participants had fun, which was 
one of the major objectives” 
Niel Wood 
Chair of Trustees, Hornets Sporting 

Foundation 

Recipient: Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation 

Project: Rochdale Township Origin Series 2017 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £4,360 

Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation is a charity that aims to encourage the people of the 
borough to get involved with rugby league regardless of age or ability.  A dedicated 
community coaching staff and foundation management team work with local clubs, schools 
and organisations to promote rugby league and to make sure more people can enjoy playing, 
watching and being involved in the sport.  Fun and unique opportunities are provided to 
inspire children and adults to lead a healthier, fuller life and take a pride in their local 
community by using a variety of engaging quality assured programmes. 

Rochdale Township Origin Series 2017 was a programme of healthy activity, competition and 
support for young people based on the State of Origin Series in Australia to engender a sense 
of pride in their local community, in themselves and their home town.  The programme aimed 
to support young people to take part in regular, supervised physical activity, provide a 
framework in which to learn new social and athletic skills to serve them for life, create a 
personal responsibility for their own physical fitness, ensure that young people have access to 
healthy out of school diversions and encourage social cohesion with the whole community 
having the opportunity to play together. 

The Hornets Sporting Foundation provided twelve weeks of rugby league coaching to primary 
and secondary schools in Rochdale.  Coaching was supplied by qualified and DBS certified 
staff.  Nine primary schools and four secondary schools participated in the programme (over 
1,000 young people) and in addition to the rugby league coaching they had the opportunity to 
play at a festival watched by their families and friends and benefit from fitness testing and 
improvement sessions.  Young people could take part in primary tag which is a minimal 
contact version of rugby league generally played in the 7-a-side format; it is a primer for young 
players to learn the basics of traditional rugby and involves just the same tactics – pass, 
catch, evade.  The skills learned can easily be transferred in the future when they are ready to 
take on traditional rugby as a hobby or a profession. 

Every player who attended the programme was eligible to play in the 2017 Origin Series 
between the four Townships over a four week period and the local community were invited to 
attend to support their Township in the competition.  Local young people learnt basic 
fundamental movement skills and many of them had the opportunity to test their own physical 
literacy and to improve over an eight month period. 

Page 73



“We were pleased with the outcome and 
members enjoyed sharing in another group’s 
activity.  There was a lot of chatter and 
evidence that the event had given pleasure to 
our singers, dancers and bowlers” 
Barbara Bergin 

Secretary, Young at Heart 

Recipient: Young at Heart 

Project: Young at Heart - Indoor Bowling Competition Awards 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £300 

Young at Heart provides group activities for older people living in Kirkholt and the 
surrounding area with the aim of promoting and encouraging physical health and mobility, 
increasing social interaction to enhance opportunities for establishing new and supportive 
friendships. 

Members of Young at Heart participate in weekly dance classes, a singing group or winter 
indoor bowls, and they wished to encourage integration between the different activity groups 
and undertake consultation to determine new activities to be delivered from the new 
community hub planned for Kirkholt.  The event enabled the individuals from the dancing, 
singing and indoor bowling groups to socialise and participate in bowling taster sessions 
facilitated by members of the bowling group, an indoor bowling competition and awards 
ceremony at St Thomas Church, Kirkholt.  Members were consulted on their views on new 
group activities to be delivered from the new community hub that opens in June 2018.  The 
information collected to be assessed to determine the level of interest and viability of the 
proposed activities and Link4Life approached to promote wider community participation. 

Page 74



“The concept of this project was to bring 
diverse cultures and communities 
together, increase understanding of 
traditions and improve both generational 
and cultural cohesion. In this manner the 
event was exceptionally successful” 
Tracie Powers 
Director, Vintage Worx Community 

Development Trust 

Recipient: Vintage Worx Community Development Trust 

Project: Around the World – International Food Festival 

Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 

Awarded: £795 

Vintage Worx (a community led voluntary group based in Falinge Park) delivers services, 
activities and projects that aim to improve personal development, increase skill levels, assist 
unemployed people to gain sustainable employment, reduce isolation and increase social 
interaction and improve community cohesion.  Local residents from predominantly the 
Falinge, Spotland and North Central wards can participate in their job club, attend training 
courses, undertake personal development projects and access support services.  Weekly 
workshops in card-making, glass painting, ceramic mosaics, upcycling, textiles, photography, 
art for beginners, sweet-making and digital inclusion reduce isolation and encourage people 
to get involved in arts and crafts.  A programme with a holistic approach to tackling obesity is 
available consisting of a twice weekly weight management plan that includes nutrition advice, 
weigh-in, rebound fitness and Zumba classes, health walks and healthy cooking classes.  
Vintage Worx also deliver a weekly gardening club, ESOL classes, and offer community 
enterprise and community group advice sessions.  Twelve community events are organised 
in the park each year with different themes and activities and Vintage Worx operates a 
community café which offers work experience opportunities to young people of the borough. 

Page 75



The International Food Festival on 9 September 2017 in Falinge Park, Rochdale was 
organised to enhance the understanding of different countries’ traditions whether this be 
cuisine, dance, costume or crafts.  A wide range of community groups representing Ukraine, 
France, Guinea Bissau, Guinea Conakry, Portugal, Spain, Cape Verde, Angola, Pakistan, 
England, Sao Tome and Principe and Jamaica provided national dishes, crafts and some 
spectacular drumming workshops.  Over 200 people attended the festival despite the 
torrential rain that prevented the planned catwalk show of traditional costumes and dances.  
High Crompton Morris Dancers managed to put on a fantastic show in between the 
downpours and the children from Footlight Theatre provided an extremely professional 
showcase of their amazing talents.  A craft tent, inflatables including an obstacle run, 
interactive castle and a play park offered a range of fun activities for children on the day. 

The festival brought diverse communities together from across the borough and enabled 
many people to learn about different traditions and cultures. 

In a divided world, Rochdale once again showed how the cultural diversity of our 
community is cause for celebration, from the vast array of different foods and 
delicacies offering mouth-watering samples, to the fascinating traditional crafts 
available to watch or join in, the event was exciting from start to finish. Additional 
highlights showed the Morris dancers from High Crompton and the children who 
entertained everyone with their singing. 
Tracie Powers 

Director, Vintage Worx Community Development Trust 

Page 76



 

“This project has had a very positive impact 

on the park as it is seen in many ways as the 
finishing touch to the infrastructure works 
(paths and drainage). People are now able to 
enjoy the park for what it should be used for, 
a clean and tidy place to both walk and relax 

in” 
Michael Buczman 
Denehurst Park Project Development 

Officer, Rochdale Borough Council 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Environmental Management 

Project: Denehurst Park benches and bins 

Fund: Clean & Green Priority Fund and Members Fund 

Awarded: £2,800 

Friends of Denehurst Park aim to provide opportunities to improve and promote the use of, 
awareness and care of facilities within Denehurst Park, in order to make them safe, 
welcoming and enjoyable for all, now and in the future.  The group since its establishment in 
2014 has been dedicated to restoring the original features of the park and developing the 
park as a community resource. 

Denehurst Park has been transformed over the past year with new paths around the entire 
park and Friends of Denehurst Park and Rochdale Council’s Environmental Management 
wished to encourage use of this green space with the provision of benches and litter bins.  
Existing seating was inadequate and the litter bins were broken, burnt out or vandalised.  
Four new benches were installed in the park (two to replace damaged benches removed as 
part of the infrastructure works and two along the new path in the open fields area) and four 
new litter bins (two bins along the new paths and two bins in the formal area of the park at 
the end of the herbaceous border and in front of Denehurst House by the sunken lawn). 

The new bin located next to the formal garden which has 
recently been restored and featured in Rochdale in 
Bloom for the last two years 

Page 77



The new paths have encouraged the local community to walk in parts of the park that were 
previously inaccessible and the new benches have provided people with a comfortable place 
to sit.  With increased visitor numbers in Denehurst Park waste could have become a 
problem.  The new bins spaced evenly throughout the park means people do not have to 
walk far to dispose of their waste, leaving a clean and tidy park behind them when they 
leave.  The design of the new benches and bins complements the historical Denehurst 
House and the surrounding formal gardens. 

The new benches located in the sunken lawn — the paths have recently been reinstated, 
with the newly created stumpery (planted by Redwood School students) featuring at the end 
of the sunken lawn. 

It is very important to ensure public parks are accessible for all; we have tried our best to 
ensure this is true in all aspects of the new park developments, new benches being part of 
that ultimate goal.  The new bins suit the area perfectly and are now a credit to the formal 
surroundings of the park.  It would have been too far for people to walk around with their 
rubbish in hand; furthermore there is less chance of people littering with new bins located 
around the new paths. 
Michael Buczman 

Denehurst Park Project Development Officer, Rochdale Borough Council 

Page 78



“Feedback from attendees was very positive 

especially comments written on the wrist bands. 
The range of activities catered for all age 
ranges so was very much a whole family day 
out.  Many parents appreciated something to do 
with their children towards the end of the 
summer holidays and a key factor for success 
for attendees was the fact all activities were 

free” 
Jayne Taylor, Senior Youth Officer 

Rochdale Borough Council 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Youth Services 

Project: Festival of Friendship 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,050 

Rochdale Youth Services organised a Festival of Friendship on Thursday 31 August 2017 in 
Broadfield Park, Rochdale to celebrate and embrace the positivity of living in a diverse 
borough (#westandtogether).  Dance, music, drama, poetry, magic and other activities 
showcased young people and the wider community with performances demonstrating whilst 
from diverse backgrounds we are one united community. 

Young people supported by Youth Workers were responsible for the planning of the 
community cohesion project which led to enhanced confidence, communication and 
organisational skills.  Themed zones were create in various locations within Broadfield Park 
that encouraged getting active with a challenge assault course, football shootout and space 
hopper/sack races; performance area with the crowds entertained by music from local talent, 
Manchester Pipe Band and an open mic session; Skylight Circus demonstrations and 
workshop, and partner agencies and services set up stalls so the community were able to 
receive information, advice and guidance on a range of issues such as education and 
apprenticeships, drug and alcohol awareness, sexual health and healthy eating. 

Page 79



Due to the nature of the activities on the day, there were numerous opportunities for people 
from different geographical areas, backgrounds, ages, ethnicity, etc to interact, get to know a 
little more about each other’s cultures and to reinforce the common factor and positivity of all 
coming from one Borough. 
Jayne Taylor 

Senior Youth Officer, Rochdale Borough Council 

Page 80



“Participation has increased due to word of 
mouth from attendees at the events.  The 
profile of the library has been raised and it 
has attracted new customers” 
Justine Bull 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Balderstone Library 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 

Project: Balderstone Library Events & Activities 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £641.58 

Balderstone Library is a community hub for various groups/individuals and organisations with 
resources made available to help people gain access to free information, learn, improve their 
wellbeing and aspire.  The library is an integral part of the community in bringing people 
young and old from all backgrounds together to create a fun, safe and learning environment 
for everyone. 

The Lego Club held on a weekly basis at Balderstone Library has proved very popular with 
both children and adults, attracting new young members including boys who are 
underrepresented.  Children and their parents/carers are encouraged to be more innovative 
together and the club supports the national curriculum as part of STEM (Science, 
Technology, Engineering and Maths) that promotes creativity, problem solving, enhances 
communication skills, develops critical thinking and literacy ability.  The new Lego figures 
and vehicles purchased with the grant have enhanced the children’s playing experience with 
the characters making their builds more interesting and realistic.  Lego clubs in libraries are 
becoming more common across the country and they have proven to be a great way of 
libraries engaging with children. 

Balderstone Library organised two events in conjunction 
with Friends of Balderstone Park to increase visitors  
to the library and park and support families with young  
children relating to literacy and creativity.  The  
‘Spooks and Books’ Halloween event provided  
activities of storytelling in the park, finding parts of  
Frankenstein’s monster and crafts in the library.   
Each child was given a goody bag with themed  
items and refreshments of a drink and fruit.  The  
‘Winter Wonderland’ Christmas event on  
8 December 2017 was an opportunity to bring  
together the local community to celebrate the  
festive period.  Over 50 children attended with  
parents/guardians to participate in activities of  
crafts, storytelling and singing from St Mary’s  
Primary School Choir plus a visit from Santa  
with each child receiving a gift, light-up helium  
balloon and goody bag. 

Page 81



Seeing the smiles on the children’s faces and hearing them enjoying themselves.  It was like 
Christmas morn when the children were opening the parcels of new Lego characters and 
vehicles. 
Justine Bull 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Balderstone Library 

Page 82



There was a story by Ray from Can O’ Worms, finding parts of Frankenstein’s monster along 
with crafts in the library.  Each child was gifted a goody bag, fruit and a drink.  The children 
were excited when finding/feeling the gruesome body parts. 
Justine Bull 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Balderstone Library 

Page 83



Fun Christmas event with crafts, Christmas carols, Santa, gifts, goodies and lots of cheer. 
The children and their families had a great time. 
Justine Bull 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Balderstone Library 

Page 84



“All who come along say that they have 
enjoyed themselves.  We are achieving 
exactly the intention to offer something to the 
community which is unique in its format” 
Lesley Sutton 
Secretary 

The Ian Newman Community Film Club 

Recipient: Bamford Chapel and Norden United Reformed Church 

Project: The Ian Newman Community Film Club 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £412.24 

The Ian Newman Community Film Club was established to enable local people to enjoy 
screenings of films in the comfort of the newly refurbished sanctuary at Bamford Chapel and 
Norden United Reformed Church.  A community activity once a month for those wishing to 
meet, watch and discuss a chosen film with refreshments available in the interval.  Films 
presented with the ethos ‘whatever is true, noble, right, pure, lovely, admirable, excellent, 
praiseworthy and fun. 

Bamford Chapel and Norden United Reformed Church’s sanctuary has individual seats 
replacing pews, large pull down screen and sound system that with the equipment purchased 
with the grant of a Blu-ray/DVD player and HDMI converter plus film screening permission 
costs has provided all the components needed for the community cinema.  The Ian Newman 
Community Film Club’s opening night was a red carpet event on 16 September 2017 with 
over sixty people attending to watch popular 1980’s movie ‘Back to the Future’.  Greeters 
were at the entrance door and inside each guest was welcomed and escorted to their seat.  
Saturday evening screenings in a relaxed and friendly atmosphere will enable the club to 
address the issues of loneliness and social isolation with the aim of improving health and 
wellbeing of the local community. 

Page 85



“It has introduced cycling to groups of 
people who have not cycled before and 
raised confidence around continued 
participation in a new activity” 
Denis Skelton 
Co-ordinator 

Petrus Community 

Recipient: Petrus Community 
Project: Petrus Peddles 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £1,982.52 

Petrus Community provides services to vulnerable adults in housing need.  Individuals can 
feel valued and realise their potential by being involved in daily activities that will enable 
them to regain a higher level of independence and make a positive contribution to the 
community. 

Service users have been introduced to the benefits of cycling through bike ability training in 
conjunction with Transport for Greater Manchester.  As the sessions have been well received 
and attended by service users, Petrus Community established the project ‘Petrus Peddles’ to 
provide the opportunity for service users in the Kingsway area to improve their cycling and 
bike maintenance skills with a view to enhancing their health through exercise and 
confidence through cycling activities.  Working with Rochdale MIND, Cycling UK and 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM), Petrus Community delivered weekly cycling tuition 
at Kingsway Sports Centre and the cycle tracks at Kingsway Business Park where absolute 
beginners learnt the basics in an enclosed car park area and progressed to a challenging 
eight kilometre circuit of dedicated cycle paths.  The grant enabled Petrus Community to 
purchase cycle tool kits, work stands and cycle accessories to be used by participants.  Two 
repair workshops were organised at Rochdale Exchange Shopping Centre and a repair 
session for young people engaged in the Challenge National Citizenship Scheme.  A pop up 
Dr Bike Session at the Madina Masid Mosque, Newbold was attended by thirty adults and 
young people and 20 bikes were repaired and safety checks advice given.  Three volunteer 
mechanics have been trained to City and Guilds Level 2 in bike repair (an industry 

Page 86



Through participating in the projects we have seen a growth in confidence around 
involvement in cycle maintenance.  We believe that through teaching people road craft and a 
simple bike check we have enabled people to approach cycling much more safely.  
Throughout the life of the project we have worked with over eighty people on bike riding and 
bike repair activities. 
Denis Skelton 
Co-ordinator 

Petrus Community 

recognised qualification) to assist service users and the local community with cycle 
maintenance and repairs.  Rochdale Bike Kitchen in the Rochdale Exchange Shopping 
Centre has been established to support people who are interested in attending training 
courses in basic cycle maintenance skills. 

Petrus Pedals and the Rochdale Bike Kitchen are now embedded within the community and 
through their partnership with Transport for Greater Manchester, Petrus Community will 
continue to offer group cycling activities in Kingsway and seek to roll out this initiative across 
the borough. 

Page 87



“The children enjoyed hearing about the 
battle, the interactions with the uniforms, 
guns, etc and the role play” 
Dianne Riley, Chairperson 

Greave Tenants & Residents Association 

Recipient: Greave Tenants & Residents Association 
Project: Past, Present & Future of Greave 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £341.80 

Greave Tenants & Residents Association aims to improve the lives of the residents of 
Greave Estate and other users of the community base through providing a range of 
educational, social and recreational activities such as arts and crafts sessions, a playgroup, 
homework club, play scheme and IT skills sessions. 

Children from Greave Estate were given the opportunity to visit The Fusilier Museum, Bury 
on 10 June 2017 to learn about World War One through costumed interpretation, historical 
objects, links to local history and practical activities.  This educational trip enabled the 
children to explore the impact of war on our history and the community, and the importance 
of remembrance, commemoration and peace.  A street event themed on World War One was 
organised on Greave Estate on 1 July 2017 for the renaming of the community base 
Passchendaele House in commemoration of the World War One battle and in remembrance 
of the local born soldiers who made the ultimate sacrifice.  The children’s visit to The Fusilier 
Museum provided them with a better understanding of centenary activities. 

Page 88



Page 89



“It will reduce anti-social behaviour around 
the allotments as it will discourage thieves 
from targeting the site” 
Karen Hayday 
Director 

Hourglass Environment 

Recipient: Hourglass Environment (The Growth Project) 
Project: Kellett Street Allotments Container 
Fund: Clean & Green Priority Fund 
Awarded: £2,250 

The Growth Project works with people who suffer from both mental and physical health 
issues to educate them in horticultural techniques, building and joinery skills that are 
transferable to both the home and the work place.  It improves the wellbeing of the client 
group making it less likely that they will need primary or secondary medical intervention.  
Disused brown field sites are transformed into green productive spaces which add value to 
the local community making a safer, greener and a more pleasant place to live.  Kellett 
Street Allotments is a Council owned site with The Growth Project renting over an acre of 
land to deliver the activities.  The allotment site has been judged as “Outstanding” for the 
last five years by the Royal Horticultural Society’s ‘It’s Your Neighbourhood’ Award for North 
West in Bloom and participates in the National Garden Scheme. 

A second hand steel shipping container was acquired to store personal protective equipment, 
refreshments, first aid kits, clients’ information, risk assessments, bird food and other 
ancillary items.  The Growth Project have reported thefts from their premises on five 
occasions to the police and anti-vandal security precautions have not deterred the thieves.  
The container is designed as an anti-vandal cabin with two doors and two windows with the 
rear of the container having a lockable room that will address the problem of thefts from the 
allotment site.  A table, benches and chairs to seat 12 people and storage facility fittings were 
included in the container negating the expense of equipping the interior. 

Page 90



“We had a fabulous day and are very grateful 
to Rochdale Council, locality and the many 
people who supported our event!” 
Alan Rawsterne 
Trustee & Secretary 

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 

Recipient: Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 
Project: Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum Community Event & Display Equipment 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £1,937 

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum was established to promote high standards of planning 
and architecture in or affecting the area, educate the public in the geography, history, 
natural history, culture and architecture of the area and secure the preservation, protection, 
development and improvement of features or areas of historic or public interest in the area. 

The community event was held at Catley Lane Head, Rochdale on Sunday 13 August 2017 
to inform people about the forum, its role in neighbourhood planning and the results of a 
detailed community questionnaire.  Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Area is considered to be a 
heritage asset because of its history, setting and architectural heritage.  A dominant feature 
of the area is the Cotton Famine Road and this year’s event theme was to commemorate 
Rochdale millworkers who suffered great hardship, but supported the abolition of slavery, 
during the Lancashire Cotton Famine (1861–65) brought about by the American Civil War.  
The event aimed to encourage people to visit and better understand our heritage and the 
many leisure activities such as walking, running, horse riding, cycling, ornithology and 
fishing that are available to pursue in the area.  Live music from The Cotton Famine Road 
Band, clog dancing from Littleborough Oakenhoof Folk Arts Group and a reading from the 
Touchstones Creative Writing Group entertained the local community at the event.  Displays 
were created by Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum, Skylight Circus Arts, Rochdale 
Ramblers and Rochdale & Bury Bridleways Association with information about the different 
groups, local history and the Rooley Moor area. 

Page 91



A new village sign for Catley Lane was unveiled at the event (funded by Greater Manchester 
Police) to promote careful driving in the area.  The event was also an opportunity to reveal the 
results of the community questionnaire (the results will be used to define a neighbourhood 
planning policy for the area for the next 20 years) and the Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 
hope to present a draft plan for the Council to consider in the near future.  A video of the event 
can be viewed at www.facebook.com/laneheadcommunity/videos/1874998436096836/ 

“This road [the Cotton Famine Road], this village [Catley Lane Head], this 
area and Rochdale has a very proud association with the abolition of 
slavery and this road is undoubtedly a monument to the courage and 
suffering of the cotton workers of Rochdale in those dark years.” 

Sue Devaney 
Local star of stage and TV 

Page 92



“My grandmother worked in a mill and when my mother was 12 her name 
was put down to work there as well. I am proud to be a descendant of 
those mill workers and how they supported the slave workers in America, I 
have no doubt Rochdaledalians would do exactly the same today.” 

Ian Duckworth 
Former Mayor 

Page 93



APPENDIX 5

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2018/19

REVENUE FUNDS 2018/19 = £342,232

Fund b/f 2017/18 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2018/19
Committed

Budget Available 

2018/19
Notes

REVENUE FUNDS

Projects Fund £7,529 £19,800 £0 £27,329 £0 £27,329 Fund to resource larger revenue and Rochdale Township 

wide projects that meet the Township's priorities.  Base 

budget of £19,800 with £7,529 unallocated funds b/f from 

2017/18.

Members Fund £0 £54,000 £0 £54,000 £0 £54,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community 

and environment.  Base budget of £54,000 will provide each 

Rochdale Township Councillor with £2,000 to allocate to 

revenue projects within their Ward.

Ward Fund £0 £72,000 £0 £72,000 £0 £72,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community 

and environment.  Base budget of £72,000 will provide each 

Rochdale Township Ward with £8,000 to allocate to projects 

within their Ward.

Clean & Green Priority 

Fund

£0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 Fund of £20,000 will provide Rochdale Township with a 

revenue funding stream to allocate to environmental 

projects.  The Clean & Green Priority Group will 

identify/develop the projects and influence funding decisions 

and monitor progress.

Communities & 

Engagement Priority 

Fund

£0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 Fund of £20,000 will provide Rochdale Township with a 

revenue funding stream to allocate to community projects.  

The Communities & Engagement Priority Group will 

identify/develop the projects and influence funding decisions 

and monitor progress.

Township Allocated 

Funds

£148,903 £0 £0 £148,903 £148,903 £0 Brought forward budget of £148,903 for pre 2018/19 

approved projects.

TOTAL £156,432 £185,800 £0 £342,232

Page 1 of 2

P
age 94



CAPITAL FUNDS 2018/19 = £287,972

CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2017/18 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2018/19
Committed

Budget Available 

2018/19
Notes

Capital Fund £99,640 £182,000 £0 £281,640 £98,879 £182,761 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the 

Township priorities.  Base budget of £182,000 with retained 

budget of £98,879 (see committed column) for pre 2018/19 

approved projects.

Armed Forces Fund £6,332 £0 £0 £6,332 £0 £6,332 Fund for updating and enhancing existing memorials and 

introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary 

of the First World War (1914-1918).  A budget of £20,000 

for a four year period was allocated in 2014/15.

TOTAL £105,972 £182,000 £0 £287,972

Page 2 of 2

P
age 95



 

Form RT02 1 

RROOCCHHDDAALLEE  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001188//1199 
 

 

Rochdale Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by harmonious 

and diverse communities.  We want the town to be proud of its co-operative spirit and industrial heritage; to 

build on these qualities for a prosperous future as part of the City Region.  Efforts to increase community 

cohesion and involvement from people of different generations, backgrounds and cultures must permeate 

all activities. 
 

 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit 

projects on relevant application forms for funding from Rochdale Township Funds.  All projects must show 

how they will address the Rochdale Township priorities of: 

 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 

communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 

work and invest. 

 Prosperity - We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 

the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

 

Rochdale Township will also make recommendations, influence and monitor the development of projects 

that meet the Township priorities through two Priority Groups.  The Clean & Green Priority Group will 

work with services, partners, businesses, local people and groups to attain and maintain high 

environmental standards for our public spaces and assets.  The Communities & Engagement Priority 

Group will encourage residents and community groups to get involved in shaping and delivering services 

and initiatives to meet local needs. 

 

2. Projects must be 

 

a) Within the powers of the Council. 

b) Supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

c) Benefit the Township community. 

d) Support the Township’s priorities and the Township Plan. 

e) Be sponsored by a Rochdale Township Councillor who is prepared to recommend the project/grant and 

justify its significance to the Township’s priorities. 

 

3. Who may apply? 

 

a) Council Services. 

b) Partner organisations (Link4Life, etc). 

c) Non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank account. 

 

4. Activities that can be funded 

 

a) Promoting active citizenship, voluntary effort and democratic involvement. Page 96

Worrall Sharron
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 6



 

Form RT02 2 

b) Promoting community-led food-growing, horticulture and landscaping. 

c) Promoting community cohesion. 

d) Promoting safer neighbourhoods, including diversionary activities for young people.  

e) Promoting healthy living. 

f) Promoting inter-generational understanding and cooperation. 

g) Promoting equality of opportunity for people with disabilities. 

h) Promoting cycling, walking and horse riding and developing routes for these. 

i) Promoting Rochdale’s heritage. 

j) Increasing recycling and waste minimisation. 

k) Starting up or reviving community groups, subject to the group working with a recognised agency 

(Link4Life, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, etc). 

a) Purchase of street furniture eg seating, paving, railings, bollards, fencing, lights, CCTV. 

b) Equipment hire or purchase, eg IT, sports, arts and crafts materials and equipment. 

c) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by Township. 

d) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 

e) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff in addition to normal duties. 

f) Hiring or renting of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 

g) Hiring of vehicles: short-term hire only, and not where there is viable public transport alternative. 

h) Trips and outings with an educational value or part of larger programme. 

 

6. Activities that may not be funded 

 

a) Activities already started before funding is awarded. 

b) Work that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing 

services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

c) Parties. 

d) Promoting religious or political causes. 

e) Projects to benefit individuals. 

f) Improvements to private land, unless there is a demonstrable community benefit.  

g) Repairing unadopted roads. 

h) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 

i) Contributing to charitable collections or running fund-raising events. 

j) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 

 

7. Items that may not be purchased with Township funds 

 

a) Alcoholic drinks. 

b) Motor vehicles. 

c) Items bought before Township has given written approval. 

d) Insurance. 

5. Items that can be funded 

Page 97



 

Form RT02 3 

 

8. Responsibilities of community groups applying for or in receipt of a grant 

 

a) To submit applications on the correct form. 

b) To only submit proposals that meet the terms and conditions and promote agreed priorities and 

objectives in a cost-effective way. 

c) To use grants only for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion. 

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the 

breakdown of expenditure. 

e) To make claims for approved funding within 6 months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion. 

f) Successful applicants must complete and return a project evaluation form and provide copy 

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 

detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Rochdale Township Office within 

one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 

being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

g) To claim VAT on purchases relating to the project only if they cannot claim it back from HM Revenue 

and Customs. 

h) To ensure that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), regulations (such as health 

and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

i) To have adequate policies and procedures in place to protect children, young people or vulnerable 

adults when applying for a project to work with such people. 

j) To ensure adequate insurance (eg public liability) is in place if required. 

k) To agree that funding received for a project does not imply any commitment by the Council to continue 

funding after the agreed finishing date. 

l) To seek approval from the Townships & Communities Manager to dispose of or transfer any items 

acquired with the grant. 

 

9. Responsibilities of Services commissioned to deliver projects 

 

a) To abide by the commissioning process set out in Section 15. 

b) To complete a project brief and supply supporting documentation. 

c) To ensure alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the 

breakdown of expenditure or timescale of delivery. 

 

10. Responsibilities of Township Office 

 

a) To ensure the application and decision-making process set out in section 13 is followed. 

b) To make payment of the grant upon receipt of invoices/receipts, subject to 11b below. 

Page 98



 

Form RT02 4 

 

11. Responsibilities of Townships & Communities Manager 

 

a) To make decisions, in consultation with the Ward Councillors, about the future of the project when a 

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 

not been re-elected.  

b) To consider requests for pro-forma payment of the grant (which must be made in writing), on receipt of 

pro-forma invoices (an official quotation from the supplier). 

 

12. Limitations 

 

a) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 

by Township Funds. 

b) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 

not adhered to. 

c) The Council reserves the right to add specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the purpose of 

the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 

13. Application and Decision Making Process 

 

a) Council Member or Officer submits Project Proposal Form (RT01) to Township Office. 

b) Township Office will send Application Form (RT02) to group or invite Project Brief from Service. 

c) Township Office checks application form to see if the project meets the terms and conditions of the 

fund. 

d) Township Office refers back proposals not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application 

forms to the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation, and may request applicants to 

supply additional information. 

e) Township Office refers proposals for funding over £5,000 to the next Rochdale Township Action and 

Resources Committee for decision. 

f) Township Office can use the officer scheme of delegation for proposals for funding of £5,000 or less. 

g) Township Office will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Area Forum Sub Groups to seek 

their support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project. 

h) Any disputes concerning the allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale Township Action 

and Resources Committee for decision. 

i) Township Office will notify applicants of decisions in writing within 15 working days of a Committee 

decision or within 5 working days of an officer decision. 

j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

 

14. Delegated Decision Making Process 

 

a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition 

Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee, may decide on all projects for 

£5,000 or less. 

b) Township Office will ask Members to respond in writing within 10 working days.  A nil response is 

considered a response in support of the application. 

c) Members will make decisions based on the information included in the application form. 

Page 99



 

Form RT02 5 

d) Township Office will advise applicants in writing within 15 working days of a decision on the outcome of 

their application. 

e) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

f) Township Office will make a written record of the officer decision: 

i. Project reference number. 

ii. Description of project. 

iii. Officer decision. 

iv. Date of decision. 

v. Reasons for decision. 

vi. Comments received from the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons with dates. 

vii. Township Office will ask Members to state the reasons for not supporting the officer’s decision. 

 

15. Commissioning Process 

 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the 

specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant Service to ensure alternative 

funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) The Service Provider should negotiate with Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee prior 

to incurring any additional costs if they wish to make variations in costs or outcomes. 

d) Where Township wishes to vary the specification – the Service Provider will identify the implications of 

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 

with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee. 

e) Where a Service Provider wishes to vary the specification, they should submit the variations to the 

Townships & Communities Manager with justification prior to incurring additional costs for 

consideration by the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.  The Committee may 

decide not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if 

the Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 

Funds. 

f) The Service Provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the 

cost of the project on the Townships & Communities Manager receiving evidence of the start of the 

project as agreed.  Stage payments may be agreed. 

g) The Service Provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a Service Provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Rochdale 

Township Action and Resources Committee may, after consultation with the Service Provider, withhold 

funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) The Service Provider must bear any unapproved additional costs incurred, unless agreed otherwise 

with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee. 

j) Service Providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment. 

 

Page 100



Report to Rochdale Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13th June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Neil Emmott, 

Portfolio Holder for 
Environment

Report Author Ian Trickett/Valery White
Public/Private Document Public Document

Rochdale Township In Bloom

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The Royal Horticultural Society has awarded Gold Medal Status to Rochdale 
Township for the last two years. As a result Rochdale has been selected by 
North West In Bloom to represent the North West nationally at the 2018 RHS 
Britain In Bloom awards. This is a great honour and the first time that 
Rochdale Township has ever been selected.

1.2 This year we have £107k funding approved by the Leader for landscape 
schemes, plus additional funding to ensure maintenance of the landscape 
schemes is of the highest quality. Work is already underway on a number of 
projects, and I would like to take this opportunity to update members in some 
detail with regard to new and ongoing schemes.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Members note the information contained within this report.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Members have been very supportive of the In Bloom projects for a number of 
years.  This is a prime example of Rochdale working cooperatively with our 
communities, voluntary groups, Elected Members and Officers. 

4. Key Points for Information

4.1 What we are doing in 2018:

 Ensuring previous year’s schemes are in the best condition by replanting 
any gaps in floral schemes caused by winter deaths, vandalism, etc
- St Mary’s Gate lavender ribbon
- Co-op van floral display
- Rochdale Memorial Gardens
- Sudden Junction mini and floral display
- St Chad’s Gardens and Packer Spout

Page 101

Agenda Item 17



- Sunburst display at A58 / Drake Street
- Norden rose beds, Jubilee Park floral display and cenotaph planting
- All the large planters in the Town Centre

 Upgrading the Denehurst Park shrub beds; this being the main park the 
judges are visiting

 Manchester Road Broadfield Park shrub bed renovation: worst shrubs 
pulled out, new shrubs planted and annual flower seed display sown

 Re-sowing the popular annual flower seed display near Sudden junction
 Bamford in Bloom new group - various planters in Bamford and Brimrod
 New floral display verge in front of Caldershaw Primary School
 Major new landscape scheme at Oldham Road/Kingsway/Queensway 

junction (gyratory).  Focal feature will be industrial revolution era steam 
machinery purchased from Ellen Road Steam Museum (pictured below at 
the Steam Museum).  Floral feature will weave through this remembrance 
of our industrial heritage.

                    

 Attention to some neglected furniture, e.g. Jutland Avenue bollards with 
peeling paint, overgrown and damaged stone planter round a large tree 
on Churchill Street, etc.

 World War 1 commemorations including:
- A World War 1 bedding scheme below the John Bright statue in 

Broadfield Park will form the shape of a poppy as per two years ago
- Soldier cut outs in the Town Centre and Norden and Balderstone 

cenotaphs
- Lamp post poppies

 Rochdale Town Centre pop-up show garden.  Like the show gardens you 
pay a lot of money to see at Tatton in the Town Centre, free for everyone 
to enjoy.  It will be located in the centre of Gracie Island.  It will be built 
and planted up week commencing 11th June and will have a World War 1 
theme. A WW1 commemoration bench will be placed there, looking 
through a picture frame that frames the view towards the cenotaph and 
which people will be able to place poppies in.  Marshall’s, the main 
sponsor for the garden, are providing large stone pillars with WW1 
relevant quotes on them. Amongst other plants, there will of course be 
poppies which Bowlee Nursery are currently growing.  Other features 
include a line of three columnar trees to provide structure, signage, stone 
seating with side and backs with a representation of the heritage tiles in 
the Town Hall and cut outs of WW1 soldiers.  The garden will be 
maintained by the existing Town Centre gardeners.

The garden will stay there until after the November commemorations and 
then be dismantled and re-erected in a slightly simplified format in a park 

Page 102



(to be decided) elsewhere in the Borough.  The site will be cleaned and 
made ready for the Christmas tree.  There is a possibility that another 
garden can pop up there every year, perhaps with a dinosaur theme for 
2019 to get people excited about the then imminent arrival of Dippy the 
following February.

This idea has been so well received we have been asked to do a simplified 
version of it at the Tatton show, which will be a great way to raise the profile of 
Rochdale Township in Bloom.

4.2 Alternatives Considered

No alternatives have been considered.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The £107k funding allocated from the Leader and funding received from 
Rochdale Township Committee, sponsorship and in-kind contributions from 
various businesses, voluntary and community groups is to fund all the above 
projects.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 There are no risk and policy implications

7. Consultation

7.1 Rochdale Township Committee

Background Papers Place of Inspection
N/A N/A

For Further Information Contact:
Ian Trickett
ian.trickett@rochdale.gov.uk   01706 922073
Or Tracy Hibbert
tracy.hibbert@rochdale.gov.uk   01706 922084

Page 103


	Agenda
	8 Minutes - Rochdale Township Committee
	9 Minutes - Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee
	10 Neighbourhood Planning - Application for Thornham St. John's Neighbourhood Area & Forum
	11 Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places
	12 Land at Turners Place, Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Land at Turners Place, Rochdale

	13 Disposal of Surplus Sites in Rochdale Township Area
	Append. 1 for Disposal of Surplus Sites in Rochdale Township Area
	Append. 2 for Disposal of Surplus Sites in Rochdale Township Area
	Append. 3 for Disposal of Surplus Sites in Rochdale Township Area

	14 Rochdale Additional Highway Investment Proposed Programme
	15 Rochdale Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2018/2019
	Appendix for Appointments report
	Last years appts by RTC

	16 Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 6 - Rochdale Township Funds Review

	17 Rochdale Township in Bloom



